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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Innova Captab Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Innova Captab Limited (hereinafter referred to
as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group, as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our respaonsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our cther ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other
Matters" section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consclidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

See Note 29 to consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

The Group recognises revenue from sale of
products and services when control over goods
is fransferred to customer/ services are
rendered based on specific terms and
conditions of sale/service contracts entered
into with respective customers. Revenue is
measured net of variable consideration i.e.
price concessions, incentives, discounts and
returns.

We have identified recognition of revenue as a
key audit malter as—

« revenue is a key performance indicator;

* there is a presumed fraud risk of revenue
being overstated through manipulation of the
timing and amount of revenue recognized due
to pressures to achieve performance targets as
well as meeting external expeclations; and

» measurement of revenue. It involves
significant estimation to determine the amount
to be recognized as revenue.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

to assess revenue is recognized in relevant period in
which control is transferred or services are provided,;

4.

Assessing the compliance of the Group's
revenue recognition poalicies with Ind AS 115 i.e.
Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

Evaluating design and implementation and
testing operating effectiveness of relevant key
internal controls with respect to revenue
recognition;

Performing substantive testing on samples
selected using statistical sampling method for
revenue transactions recorded during the year
by testing underlying documents such as:

i. invoices,
ii. goods dispatch notes,

iii. third party shipping documents / customer
acceptances (as applicable), and

iv. subsequent receipts in the bank statements
(as applicable)

Testing journals posted to revenue ledger
selected based on specified risk-based criteria
to identify unusual items;

Testing on a sample basis using statistical
sampling methaod, specific revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end
date to check revenue recognition in the correct
financial period;

Carrying analytical procedures on revenue
recognized during the year to identify unusual
variances ;

Testing contractual terms to  assess
performance obligation and basis for revenue
recognition;

Testing samples relating to price concessions,
incentives, discounts and returns recorded
during the year by comparing the subsequent
settlements / credit notes generated towards
these items;

Testing the year end accruals made by checking
the estimates by reference to the terms of
applicable policies, historical levels of product

A
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

returns, actual sales etc; ‘

H

10. Assessing adequacy of disclosures in financial |
statements against the requirement of Ind AS |

115.

See Note 47 to consalidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

On 30 June 2023, the Group completed the
acquisition of SBML, pursuant to the approved
resolution plan under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

The Group determined acquisition to be
business combination in accordance with Ind
AS 103 which requires identified assets and
liabilities to be recognised at fair value at the
date of acquisition. The excess of fair value
over acquisition cost is recognised as capital
reserve. Group engaged with auditor of SBML
(“other auditor”) to perform an audit of financial
information of SBML as at acquisition date.

Group appointed independent valuers for
Purchase Price Allocation (‘PPAY,
identification and fair valuation of acquired
assets and liabilities . The purchase price
allocation resulted the Group recognising
capital reserve of ¥ 711.95 million in “Other
Equity”.

Significant assumptions and estimates were
used in determination of fair values of the
identified assets and liabilities in the
transaction and thus we conslider this area to
be a Key Audit Matter.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

1. Obtaining understanding of the transaction and
identifying key terms relevant for accounting of
transaction as a bargain purchase;

2. Testing design and operating effectiveness of
Group's key controls over accounting of
business combination;

3. We assessed competence, capabilities and
objectivity of Group's expert engaged to
determine fair value of the assets and liabilities
acquired;

4. We gained an understanding of the work carried
out by Group's expert;

5. Tracing value of consideration transferred as
per the resolution plan;

6. Obtaining financial information of SBML, as at
acquisition date, audited by other auditor;

7. Involving our valuation experts to examine
methodology and key assumptions used in
purchase price allocation and determine the fair
value of assets and liabilities acquired at
acquisition date;

8. Verifying Group's computation of capital
reserve,;

9. Examining adequacy of disclosures in
consolidated financial statements.

e
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies and Board of trustees of the trust included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each companyi/trust and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effeclively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies and the Board of trustees of the trust included in the Group are responsible for assessing
the ability of each company/trust to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors
and Board of Trustees either intends to liquidate the company/trust or to cease operations, or has ne
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies and the Board of trustees of the trust included in the
Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company/trust.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
has been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in section titled “Other Matter”
in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and the subsidiary
company and subsidiary company included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

=
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of ¥ 2,037.54 million as at 31 March 2024, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of ¥ 1,432.73 million and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to ¥ 405.13 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other auditors.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as was audited by other auditor,
as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the report of the other auditor of subsidiary company except for the matter stated
in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

¢. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
and the subsidiary company as on 05 April 2024, 26 April 2024, 13 May 2024, 15 May 2024, 16
May 2024, 17 May 2024, 18 May 2024 and 24 May 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company and the subsidiary company and the reports of the statutory auditors of
its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
aperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B".
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BSR & Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us along with the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2024 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 46()) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated

(i)

in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 50(x) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or subsidiary companies to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or subsidiary companies
(*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 50(xi) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or
subsidiary companies from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or subsidiary companies shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared
nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares' for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility. except for the instances mentioned below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit,
except for the instances mentioned below, we and respective auditors of such subsidiary
companies did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with,

Instances of accounting software for|In respect of the Holding company and one
maintaining its books of account which did not | subsidiary company, based on our examination
had a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) |which included test checks, the Holding
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

facility and the same was not operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software

Company and one subsidiary company has
used accounting softwares’ for maintaining its
books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility for one of the accounting software has
not operated throughout the year as it was
enabled by the Holding Company and one
subsidiary company in a phased manner from
27 January 2024 for certain tables/fields
relating to revenue, ftrade receivables,
inventory, fixed assets, tax, cash and bank
records, general ledger and other allied areas
of the said accounting software. The feature of
recording audit trail facility for the above has
been operating for the period since when the
same has been enabled for all relevant
transactions recorded in the said software. In
addition, the feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility was not enabled at the application
layer for the period from 1 April 2023 to 31
March 2024 for certain remaining tables/fields
relating to revenue, trade receivables,
inventory, fixed assets, tax, cash and bank
records, purchases, trade payable, general
ledger and other allied areas of the said
accounting software.

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility was enabled at the database layers to
log any direct data changes for the said
accounting software used for maintaining the
books of account, however, the logs generated
were not readable due to current system
functionality.

Based on our examination which included test
checks, the Holding Company and one
subsidiary company has used a separate
accounting software for maintaining its books
of account related to payroll which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the said accounting software. Further, the audit
trail was not enabled at the database level for
this accounting software to log any direct data
changes.

Instances of audit trail feature being tampered
with

In respect of the Holding company and one
subsidiary company, for the period where audit
trail (edit log) facility was enabled and
operated, we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with

d=
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Innova Captab Limited

during the course of our audit for one of the
accounting software and are unable to test the
same for the other accounting software relating
to payroll due to certain system inherent
limitations.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us along with the
consideration of reports of the other auditor of one subsidiary company incorporated in India which
were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented
upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

N
éf“h&%—i’
Gaurav _Mahajan
Partner

Place: Panchkula Membership No.: 507857
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAl UDIN:24507857BKFUQC4799
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Innova Captab Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

{xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their
reports under the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Sr. Name of CIN Holding Clause number of the
No. the Company/ | CARO report which is
entities Subsidiary/ unfavourable or
Jvi qualified or adverse
Associate
1 Innova U24246MH2005PL.C150371 Holding (i)e, (ii)(b) and (vi)a
Captab Company
Limited
2 Univentis | U24232HP2015PLC000992 Subsidiary | (ii)(b) and (vii)a
Medicare Company
Limited
3 Sharan L24110MH1983PLC052251 Subsidiary | (vi))(b)
Bio- Company
medicine
Limited

Place: Panchkula
Date: 29 May 2024

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

[
\_/_

Gaurav Mahajan

Partner

Membership No.: 507857

ICAI UDIN:24507857BKFUQC4799
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Innova Captab Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Innova Captab Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and such
companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary company, as were audited by the other auditor, the
Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the
essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note").

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor
of the relevant subsidiary company in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
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BS R &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Innova Captab Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary
company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor
of such company incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

(‘\.

\ﬁ—’
Gaurav Mahajan
Partner
Place: Panchkula ! Membership No.: 507857
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAI UDIN;24507857BKFUQC4799
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Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Consolidared Bulance sheet ns at 31 March 2024

(Amount in T mitlions, except for share dut undess otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
(1) Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 5a 2.5916.08 1,501.06
(b) Right-of-use assets 6 486.86 153.04
(¢} Capital work-in-progress Sa 3.407.87 21543
(d) Goodwill 5h 16694 166.94
(e) Other intangible assets 5b 8.95 7713
(I Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 0.00 0.00
(i1) Loans 8 7.32 4,78
(iii) Other financial assets 9 25.69 5.59
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 38 199.60 1.20
(h) Other tax assets (net) 10 - 727
(1} ther non-current nssets 11 191.95 556.43
Total non-current asscts 7,411,27 2,619.47
(2} Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 1.440.16 1,173.16
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 13 2,584.88 2.652.18
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 117.28 3525
(i1} Bank balances other than (i) above 15 750.20 153.50
(iv) Loans 16 4.39 1011
(v} Other financial assets 17 76.30 71.94
(¢} Other current assets 18 52433 32853
Total current assets 5,797.54 4,424.67
Total assets 13,208.81 7,044,14
Equity and linbilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 19 57225 430,00
(b) Other equity 20 7,736.69 2.285.06
Total equity 8,308.94 2,765.06
Linbilities
(2) Nom- current liabilities
fa) Financial liabilities
(1} Borrowines 21 2.081.98 1,341.397
(i1) Lease liabilities 6 322 13.84
(111} Other financial liabilities 22 - 78.94
(b) Provisions 23 91.44 28.97
() Deferred tax liabilities {net) 38 48.42 39.21
{d) Other non-current liabilities 24 - 0.85
Tatal non-current liabilities 2,245.06 1,503.58
(3) Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{1} Borrowings 21 336.09 101015
(i1} Lease lighilities 6 Q.75 3.96
(iii) Trade payables 25
-total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13.60 573
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,782.95 1,579.10
(iv) Other financial liabilities 26 295.75 114.63
(b) Other current liabilities 27 176.66 56.10
{¢} Provisions 23 30.55 5.83
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 28 946 -
Total current liabilitics 2,654.81 2,775.50
Total linbilities 4,899.87 4,279.08
Total equity and liabilities 13,208.81 7,044,14
Material aecounting policies 3
Motes to the financial statements 5-51

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Ce
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As per our report of even date attached,

lor BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm rcgistmtir) number: 101248W/W-100022

Gaufay Mahajan

Partner
Membership Number ; 507857

Place; Panchkula
Date: 29 May 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Innova Captab Limited
@J;éumar Lohariwala

Chatrman & Whaoletime Divector

WA
Manoj Kumar LohaMwala

Meanaging Director
DIN : 00144700

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Panchkula
Date; 29 May 2024

Company Secretary
Membership No. A42724



Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 Maveh 2024
(Amount in & millions, except for share gara unless othervise stated)

Particulars Notes Tor the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1 Revenue from operations 24 10,813.05 9,263 80
11 Other income 30 124.89 91.98
I Total income (1+ 11) 10,937.94 9,355.78

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 31 6,961.21 6,466.06
Purchasc of stock-in-trade 32 355.44 44791
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 33 (33.21) 1.65
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense 34 906.61 54797
Finance costs 35 214.56 199.73
Depreciation and amortization expense 36 159.57 110,77
Other expenses 37 1.078.47 663.74
Total expenses (IV) 9,642.65 5,437.83
V  Profit before tax (I1-1Y) 1.295.29 917.95
V1 Tax expensc:
(1) Current lax 38 293.30 218.60
(i1) Deferred tax charge 58.54 19.81
Total tax expense (VI) 351.84 23841
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 943.45 679.54

VIII Other comprehensive income
dtems that will not be reclossified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 19.75 (0.72})

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.86) 0.18

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (net of tax) 18.89 {0.54)
TX Total comprehensive income for the year (VIIEVIID 962.34 679.00

Earnings per equity share

Basic and diluted [nominal value of T 10 per share] 41 18.66 14.16
Material accounting policies 3
Notes to the financial statements 5-51

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered dccountants Innova Captab Limited

Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022
y
WX @

Gaurav Mahaja Manoj Kumar Lohariwala Vinay Kumar Lohariwala
Pariner Chairman & Wholetime Director Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership Number : 507857 DIN : 00144656 DIN : 00144700 Membership No. A42724
A3
Lokesh Bhasin

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Panchkula Place: Panchkula
Date: 29 May 2024 Date: 29 May 2024




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amowunt in & millions, except for shave daia wnless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year

Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amortization expense

Expected credit loss on trade receivables

Bad debts written off

Net profit on sale of property, plant and cquipment
Unrealized foreign exchange (2ain)

Unrealized profit on Inventory

Amortisation of government grant

Finance costs

Transaction costs related to borrowings

Provision for obsolete inventory

Loss / (gain) on fair valuation of cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares
Loan to employee written off

Liability written back

Interest income

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables

Increase in trade payables

Decrease/(increase) in loans
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets
Drecrease / (increase) in other non-current asscls
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets
Increase / (decrease) in other current liahilities
(Decrease)/ increase in other financial liabilities
Inerease in provisions

Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax paid (net)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B Cash flows from investing activitics
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest income received
Payments made for acquisition of subsidiary *
Bank deposits made
Proceeds from redemption of bank deposits
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

C Cash flows from financing activities
Principal Payment of lcase liabilities
Finance cost paid 2
Repayments of nan-current borrowings
Proceeds from non-current barrowings
Repayment of current borrowings (net)
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from issue of cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares
Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
- on aequisition of subsidiary *

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

* refer note 47

1,295.29 917.95
159.57 110,77
14.20 119
345 436
(0.33) (2.86)
(6.60) (6.54)
4.96 0.40
(0.43) (21.52)
214,56 199.73
0.63 (1.36)
17.79 1.88
19.36 (19.76)
510 -
(27.98) -
(35.02) (7.11)
1,666.85 1,177.13
15.40 108.42
44,90 (524.33)
62.62 136.69
1.92 (9.73)
14.19 (24.79)
5.98 (0.27)
31.87 (19.12)
26.81 (0.84)
(140.11) 15.44
9.54 7.93
1,739,97 866.53
(276.57) (195.29)
1,463.40 671.24
(2,873.53) (789.91)
1.08 7.30
25.28 4.71
(1,648.14) -
(494.40) (153.11)
. 22.49
(4,989.71) (908.43)
(9.41) (7.21)
(149.42) (123.55)
(161.32) (350.56)
1,688.27 495.13
(990.87) (242.89)
3.231.00 =
© 500.00
3,608.34 270.92
$2.03 33.73
35.25 1.52
117.28 35.25




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024
{Amauni in ¥ millions, except for share data uniess otherwise siated)

Notes:

1. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash on hand
Balances with banks - in current accounts
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

0.51 038
116.77 34,87
117.28 35.25

2. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the applicable Tndian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on "Statement of

Cash Flows".

3 Reconciliation of movemenis of current and non-current borrowings 1o cash lows arising from financing activilies

Borrowings at the beginning of the year

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Repayments of non-current barrowings

Repayments of current borrowings (net)

Transaction costs related to borrowings

Praceeds from issue of cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares

Transfer of derivative component of cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares
Interest expenses on curnulative compulsorily convertible preference shares

Cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares converted

Borrowings at the end of the year

-9

Reconciliation of movements to cash flows arising from leases activities during the year .

Balance as at beginning of the year

Additions

Additions on acquisition of subsidiary (Refer note 47)
Accreditation of interest

Payment of lease liabilities

Balance as at end of the year

5 Interest paid includes the interest portion of the lease liabilities

Material accounting policies
Motes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on hehalf of Board of Directors of
Innova Captab Limited

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

(

M&

Manoj Kumar Lohariwala

Gauray Mahajin
Partner Cheivinan & Wholetime Director  Managing Director

DIN : 00144656

.

Membership Number : 507857

Lokesh Bhasin
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Panchkula
Date: 29 May 2024

Place: Panchkula
Date; 29 May 2024

As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
235192 1.981.79
1,688.27 49513
(161.32) (350.56)
(990.87}) (241.53)

(1.88) (1.36)

- 500.00

- (98.70)

- 67.15

(468 43) -

2,417.67 2,351.92
As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
17.80 .86

20,98 13.29

3.61 -

271 1.86
(12.12) (7.21)

32.98 17.80

DIN : 00144700

5-51

Qv

Vinay Kumar Lohariwala

arika Shukla
Company Secretary
Membership No. A42724




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLCIS0371)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
fAmount in T millions, except for share data unless atherwise stated)

A Equity share capital ( refer note 19)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number  Amount  Number Amount
of shares of shares

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 48,000,000 480,00 1,200,000 120.00

Sub-division of | share of face value ¥ 100/- each into 10 share ol face value T 10/- cach effective - - 10,800,000 -

04 April 2023 (Increase in shares on account of sub-division)

Add:- Bonus share issued during the year - - - 36,000,000 360.00

Add:- Fresh issue of equity shares G224 929 0225 -

Balance at the end of the reporting year 57,224,919 57225 48,000,000 480.00

B Other equity (refer note 20)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total
- . S .'l
Capital Retained carnings RN
reserve premium
Balanee as at 01 April 2023 0.44 2,284.62 2,285.06

Addition during the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year

Add : Profit for the year - 94345 - 04345
Add : Other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the year = 18.89 - 18.89

Total comprehensive income for the year - 962.34 - 962.34

Change in owwnership interests

Acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 47} 711.95 - - 71195
Total changes in ownership interests 711.95 - - 711.95

Transactions with owners of the Company
Contributions and distributions
Add : Fresh Issuc of equity shares

~CCPS converted - - 618,64 618.64
-lssued to 360 One special opportunitics fund Series 9 - - 146.65 146.65
-Issued to 360 One special opportunities fund Series 10 - - 146.65 146.65
-Public [ssue made on 29 December 2023 - - 3.128.57 3,128.57
Less: Shares issuc exp - - (263.17) _ (263.17)
Balanee as at 31 March 2024 712.39 3.246.96 3,777.34 _ 7.736.6%
Balance as at 01 April 2022 0.44 1,965.62 - 1,966.06
Total comprehensive inconte for the year

Add : Profit for the year - 679,54 - 679.54
Add : Other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the vear = (0.54) - (0.54)
Total cnmgrehensive income for the year - 679.00 - 679.00

Transactions with owners of the Company
Contributions and distributions

Issue of bonus shares - (360.00) - (360.00)
Total contributions and distributions - (360.00) - (360.00)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.44 2,284.62 - 2,285.06
Material accounting policies 3

Maotes to the financial statements 5-51

The accompanying notes fonn an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Adccownrants Innova Captab Limited

Firm registration number: 101 248W/W-100022
QUSRS £9)

(

WA

Gaurav Mahajan Manoj Kumar Loharivala Vinay Kumar Lohariwala Nechdrika Shukla

Pariner Chairman & Wheleiime Direclor  Managing Divector Company Secretary

Membership Number : 507857 DIN : 00144656 DIN : 00144700 Membership No. A42724
\

Lokesh Bhasin
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Panchkula Place: Panchkula
Date: 29 May 2024 Date: 29 May 2024




Note 1.

Note 2.
(i)

Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Reporting Entity

[nnova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371) (“the Company” or “the Holding Company”), a
Company domiciled in India with its registered office situated at Office No. 606, Ratan Galaxie-6th Floor, J.N.
Road, Plot No. 1, Mulund (W), Mumbai, MH 400080, India, was incorporated in Mumbai on 3 January 2005 as
a private limited company. The Company was initially incorporated with the name of “Harun Healthcare Private
Limited” and later the name was changed to “Innova Captab Private Limited”. The Company was converted to
a Public Limited Company w.e.f 26 July 2018. After conversion, the name of the Company is “Innova Captab
Limited”. Further, w.e.f 16 October 2023 Company has changed its registered office to 601, Proxima, Plot No
19, Sector 30A Vashi, Navi, Mumbai 400705.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries
(referred to collectively as the “Group”).

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of drugs and pharmaceuticals.
Basis of preparation
Statements of compliance

The “consolidated financial statements™ of the Group comprise of Consolidated Balance sheet of the Group as
at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for each of the year ended 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023 together with notes (together referred as “consolidated financial statements™).

The consolidated financial Statements of the Group have been prepared to comply in all material respects with
the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time), presentation requirements of
Division IT of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the consolidated financial Statements
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year and corresponding reporting year, except for the
estimation of income tax (see note 3(0)). A number of amended standards became applicable for the current
reporting period. The Group did not have to change its accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as
a result of adopting these amended standards.

The Group also adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS T - Presentation of Financial
Statements) from 1 April 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting policies
themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of 'material’, rather than 'significant, accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand
other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and made updates to the information disclosed in Note 3 Material
accounting policies (previous financial year ended 31 March 2023: Significant accounting policies) in certain
instances in line with the amendments.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 29




(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Financial assets and liabilities acquired under business combination|Fair value

Derivative financial instruments Fair value

Defined benefits liability Present value of defined benefits obligations

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Group is the Indian rupee. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Indian rupees. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, up to two places of decimal, unless
otherwise indicated.

Current vs non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
periad.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future
periods. ]




(vi)

Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Judgements

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 3(h) and 29 — revenue recognition: whether revenue is recognized over time or at a point in time,
determining the transaction price, estimating the expected value of right to return

- Note 3(d) and 6 — assessment of useful life of right-to-use asset

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
is included in the following notes

- Note 2(vi) — Fair value measurement (including fair value of consideration transferred on business
combination and fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed)

- Note 3(h) and 29 - Revenue recognition- Estimating the expected value of right to return.

- Note 3(c) and 5a — Assessment of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment
- Note 3(d) and 6 — Lease Classification, discount rate

- Note 3(e) and 5b — Assessment of useful life of intangible assets

- Note 3(f) — Valuation of inventories

- Note 3(g) — Impairment of financial assets; impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions
underlying recoverable amounts

- Note 3(1) and 43 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions

- Note 3(0) and 38 — Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax; recognition of deferred
tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used, future
recoverability been probable

- Note 3(p), 3(q), and 46 — Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies, key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control framework with respect
to measurement of fair values. This includes the top management division which is responsible for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The top management division
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, is used
to measure fair values, then the top management division assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties
to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Audit Committee.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assetorliability, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) ChP TA@



Note 3.

Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the changes have occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used
in preparing the consolidated financial statements is included in the Note 44.

Material accounting policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these standalone
financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise.

Tn addition, the Group adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1 — Presentation of
Financial Statements) from 1 April 2023. The amendments require the disclosure of 'material’, rather than
'significant, accounting policies. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting
policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in Note 3 in certain instances.

Set out below are the material accounting policies:
Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprises the financial Statements of the Group, and the entities controlled
by the Group including its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

The consolidated financial statements is prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial Statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The detail of consolidated entity as follows:

Name of subsidiary Country Percentage of ownership
of incorporation As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2623
Univentis Medicare Limited # India 100% [00%
Sharon Bio Medicine Limited## India 100% i
Univentis Foundation ### India 100% 100%

# The Group has invested in Univentis Medicare Limited on 31 December 2021
## The Group has invested in Sharon Bio Medicine Limited on 30 June 2023
### Incorporated on 14 June 2021




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PL.C150371)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Consolidation procedure

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that Group member's financial Statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

The financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a
subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same
date as the financial Statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the
subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

- Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

- Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

- Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the acquisition,
which is the date at which control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition and
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at fair values on their acquisition date.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. In case of leases acquired as part of business combination, the Group measures
a right-of-use asset at the same amount as the lease liability. However, if the lease terms are favorable or
unfavorable when compared with market terms, then the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the fair value of the off-
market terms. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets. Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are recognised in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss. Transaction costs
are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of debt or equity securities. Any
contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair
value of contingent consideration are recognised in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The financial Statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and
any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
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Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (except trade receivable, that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price) is recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit and loss).
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) are recognised immediately in Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss. A
trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
e amortised cost

e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

e fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial asset at amortised cosl

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity investmenls

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, ate recognised in the OCIL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the
Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or logs-===.

ZC AP TN
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Financial assefs at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investment at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
FVOCI using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCL. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investment at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Impairment losses (and
FVOCI reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

—the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

— The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

— How managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

— The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assels: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers:
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— Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— Prepayment and extension features; and

— Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (¢.g. non-recourse features).
Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

a) Financial assets at FVTPL: Thesc assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

b) Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized (i.c., removed from the Group’s Consolidated Balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated lability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FEVTPL ifit is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Consolidated Balance
sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneoysh
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Derivative financial instriuments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments in form of compulsorily convertible preference shares.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is
not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair
value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Guarantee

A financial guarantee contract requires the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee and not arising from a transfer of
a financial asset, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

» the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

« the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the Group’s revenue recognition policies.

The Group has not designated any financial guarantee contracts as FVTPL.

The Group estimates the loss allowance on financial guarantee contracts based on the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted by the
interest rate relevant to the exposure.

Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)
Recognition and measurement

Items of PPE are stated at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and or
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is carried at historical cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Cost of an item of a PPE comprises its purchase price including import duty, and other non-refundable taxes after
deducting any trade discounts and rebates and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of PPE comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly atiributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Expenditure incurred on startup
and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion, including the expenditure incurred on trial runs
(net of trial run receipts, if any) up to the date of commencement of commercial production are capitalised. If
significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of PPE.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting date, are shown under other non-current
assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown as capital work-in-progress.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.
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Transition to Ind AS

The cost of property, plant and equipment as at 1 April 2019, the Group date of transitions to Ind AS, was
determined with reference to its carrying value recognized as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date
of transition to Ind AS.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The cairymg amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Consolidated Statements of Profit
and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of PPE less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method and is recognised in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided as per rates corresponding to the useful life specified in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
except for certain classes of PPE which are depreciated based on the internal technical assessment of the
management.

The estimated useful lives of items of PPE for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Particulars Useful life as per Schedule 11 Management estimate of useful life
Building - Factory 30 Years 30 Years
Office equipment 5 Years 3-5 Years
Plant and equipment 3-15 Years 3-15 Years
Lab Equipments 10 Years 10 Years
Electrical installations 10 Years 10 Years
Vehicles 10 Years 10 Years
Furniture and fittings 10 Years 10 Years
Computer and Printer 3-6 Years 6 Years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is
ready for use (disposed of).
Derecognition

An item of PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and
disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of a PPE are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Leases in which the Group is a lessee

"I he Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings and leasehold land. The Group, at the
eption of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not. A contract is, or contawf ﬂﬂease\ﬁ the
¢t conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a sideratton,
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The Group recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful
life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the
Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The Group determines its
incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources and makes certain
adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Group recognises the amount of
the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and
Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in Consolidated Statements of Profit
and Loss.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for
early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not fo terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-
substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero. The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘financial liabilities’ in the Statements of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Group recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in the Statements of Profit or Loss over the lease
term.
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Intangible assets

Goodwill arising on business combinations is disclosed separately in the Consolidated Balance sheet and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) that are acquired (including implementation of software system) are
measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.

Advances paid towards acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each Balance sheet date, are shown under
other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown as intangible
assets under development.

After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized in depreciation and
amortization in Statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful life computer software for the current and comparative periods is 5 years.
Derecognition

Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and
disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The method of determining cost of various
categories of inventories are as follows:

Raw materials (except goods in transit) | Weighted average method

Traded goods Weighted average method

Packing material Weighted average method

Stores and spares Weighted average method

Work-in-progress and finished goods | Variable cost at weighted average including an appropriate share of

(manufactured) variable and fixed production overheads. Fixed production
overheads are included based on normal capacity of production
facilities.

Goods in transit Specifically identified purchase cost

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.
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Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below
cost, except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products
will exceed their net realisable value. The Group reviews the condition of its inventories and makes provision
against obsolete and slow moving inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost
and contract assets. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- Significant financial difficulty of the borrower, debtor or issuer;

- The breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
- It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- Bank balances and other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash flow due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flow that the Group expects to receive).

Expected credit losses are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.
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Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtors do not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount subject to the
write-off, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group’s procedure for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. The Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are grouped
together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUSs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU
(or the asset).

The Group’s corporate assets (e.g head office building for providing support to CGU) do not generate independent
cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to
which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on
a pro rata basis. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. An impairment loss in
respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Group reviews at each
reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Revenue firom contract with customers

Under Ind AS 115, the Group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customet.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

C‘ ontract assets are recogniscd when there is excess of revenue earned over bill'mgs on contracts.
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Contract liability is recognised when billings ate in excess of revenues.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements.
The Group reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the
transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing
obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a
cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography.

Invoices are usually payable within a range of 45 to 90 days.

Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition:

a) Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price
could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements
such as price concessions and incentives. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to
the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The
estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Group allocates the elements of
variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable
evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

b) The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate selling price for a performance obligation.
The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative
selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract.

¢) The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer
consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence
of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service,
transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, elc.
In case where performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognized when
significant risk and rewards of ownership of goods is transferred to the customers, generally ex-
factory. In case where performance obligation is satisfied over a period of time, revenue is recognized
on the basis of actual cost incurred plus mark up as agreed with the customers under each agreement.

d) Right of return - Group provides a customer with a right to return. The Group, as a customary trade
practice, accepts sales returns which are primarily in the nature of saleable inventory based on levels
of inventory in the distribution channel. The Group uses the expected value method to estimate the
goods that will not be returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue,
the Group recognizes a refund liability. A right of return asset and corresponding adjustment to
change in inventory is also recognized for the right to recover products from a customer.

i) Export incentives

Export incentive entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms
of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no significant uncertainty
egarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds. T
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Recognition of interest income or expense
Tnterest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then
the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Government grant

The Group recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to
them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. Government grants related to capital assets are
recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are then recognised in Consolidated
Statements of Profit and Loss as other income on a systematic basis.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in Consolidated Statements of Profit and
Loss as other income on a systematic basis in the periods in which such expenses are recognised.

Grants related to income are deducted in reporting the related expense in the Statements of profit and loss. Export
entitlements from government authorities are recognised in the Statements of profit and loss when the right to
receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made by the Group, and where
there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due within twelve months of the end of the period in which the employees render
the related services are classified as short-term employee benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages,
short term compensated absences, performance incentives, etc. and are recognised as expenses in the period in
which the employee renders the related service and measured on an undiscounted basis. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid e.g., salaries, wages and bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits
Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions
to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Group makes
specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (*ESI’)
to Government administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Group's contribution is recognised
as an expense in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan Gratuity is a

ned benefit plan The Gmup has an obligation towards gratl.uty, a defined benef -qiggnne)ineg plan covering

et t, death while
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in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and
the tenure of employment. The Group’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated separately by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that
amount. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

As per the Group's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to future
periods to either be utilised during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during service, on early
retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee. Accumulated compensated
absences are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Group's obligation in respect of long-term
employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. Such obligation such as those related to
compensate absences is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if
the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation.

Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans is accrued in the books of account on the basis of actuarial
valuation cartied out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each
year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately
to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows.
The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on
the market yields on Government securities as at the reporting date, having maturity periods approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized
immediately in OCL. They are included in other equity in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity and
in the Consolidated Balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss as
past service cost. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as a part of cost of the asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are
incurred.

n) KForeign currency transactions

Initial recognition
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at the dates of the transactions.
Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional cutrency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences on restatements/settlement of all monetary items
are recognised in the Consolidated Statements of profit and loss.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Consolidated Statements of Profit and
Loss, except to the extent that it relates to a business combination. The Group does not have any items recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax
treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under Ind AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable
ar receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions or make reversals of provisions
made in earlier years, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to / received from the tax
authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets, recognized or unrecognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and recognised / reduced
to the extent that it has become probable / no longer probable respectively that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities.

The Group has adopted Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to Ind AS 12) from 1 April 2023, The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption to exclude transactions that give rise to equal and offSetting temporary differences - e.g. leases and
decommissioning liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, an entity is required to recognise the
associated deferred tax assets and liabilities from the beginning of the earliest copfipatafive period presented,
i components of equity at
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that date. For all other transactions, an entity applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented.

The Group previously accounted for deferred tax on leases and decommissioning liabilities by applying the
'integrally linked' approach, resulting in a similar outcome as under the amendments, except that the deferred tax
asset or liability was recognised on a net basis. Following the amendments, the Group has recognised a separate
deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets.
However, there was no impact on the statement of financial position because the balances qualify for offset under
paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at 1 April 2022 as a
result of the change. The key impact for the Group relates to disclosure of the deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised (refer note 38).

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility
of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. A contingent
asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components, and for which discrete financial Statements is available. All operating segments’ operating
results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Cash and cash equivalents
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maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

u) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

v) FEarnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of
caleulating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

(v) Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") expenditure
CSR expenditure incurred by the Group is charged to the Statement of the Profit and Loss.

(w) Share capital

i. Equity shares: Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares are recognised as a
deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 12.

ii. Preference shares: The Group’s cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (“CCCPS”) are
classified as financial liabilities, because the instrument holders, in terms of the underlying agreement, had
exit rights including requiring the Group to buy back shares held by them where upon the conversion ratio is
also not fixed. Since both the conversion and redemption feature is conditional upon an event not under the
control of the issuer, and may require entity to deliver cash, which issuer cannot avoid, or convert the CCPS
into equity shares, where the fixed for fixed condition is not met, therefore, CCCPS have been considered a
“hybrid” financial liability.

Note 4: Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March

2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standard applicable to the Group
that has not been applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024
{Amount in T millions, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

¢. The Company has capitalized the following expenses to the cost of property, plant and equipment / capital work-in-progress (CWIP). Consequently, expenses disclosed
under the respective notes are net of these amounts:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Emplayes benefits expense 24.19 14.96
Finance costs (Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - on horrowings) # 13734 28.83
Other expenses 32.20 0.74
Total 193.73 44.53

# Capitalisation of borrowing costs relates to funds borrewed both specifically and generally to acquire/construct qualifying assets. The capitalisation relating to general
borrawings was ¥ 37.98 at 7.85% per annum for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 Z 18.94 at 8.11%).

d. Capital work in progress (CWIP) ageing schedule:
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total
Projects in progress as at 31 March 2024%* 2,678.18 717.76 - - 3,395.94
Projects temporarily suspended as at 31 March 2024* - - 11.93 - 11.93
Projects in progress as at 31 March 2023 203.50 11.93 - - 21543
* Dyring the year ended 31 March 2024, capitalisation of 2 11.93 pertaining to a machine is overdue on account of technical reasons and is expected to be capitalised on

30 June 2024

=% Total revised cost of Jammu projeet as approved by board of dircetors in its meeting held on 29 March 2024 is T4,593.72 which includes cost escalation of T 336.80
and cost of new manufacturing ling of T 705.20 leading to a total change of ¥ 1,042.00 million in the original project cost of £ 3,551.72, as approved by board of
directars in its meeting held on 19 June 2022. Also, the plant is now expected to be capitalized between July-September 2024,

Note 5b - Goodwill and Other intangible assets

Gross carrying amount

Particulars Goodwill] Other intangible]
(Refer note (b) below)jomputer software

Balance as at 01 April 2022 166.94 11,29
Additions - acquired - 4.80
Balance as at 31 March 2023 166.94 16,09
Balance as at 01 April 2023 166.94 16.04
Additions - acquired - 135
Acquisition of subsidiary (Refer note 47) - 1.83
Balance as at 31 March 2024 166.94 19.27
Al lated amortization
Balance as at 01 April 2022 - 6,76
Additions - 1.60
Balanee as at 31 March 2023 - 8.36
Balance as at 01 April 2023 - 8.36
Additions - 1.95
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 10.31
Carrying amounts (net)

As at 31 March 2023 166.94 7.73

As at 31 March 2024 166.94 8.96
Note:

a. Asat 31 March 2024 the estimated remaining amortization year for other intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Soflware 0.50 - 4.60 years (31 March 2023 0.5 - 4 years)

b. For the purposes of impainnent testing, goodwill is allocated to the Cash Generating Units (CGU) which tepresents the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, which is not higher than the Group's operating scgments. The entire goodwill of Z 166,94 has been allocated Lo the purchase of
business of Univentis Medicare Limited.

The recoverables amount of the above cash generating units was based on its value in use. The value in use of these units was determined to be higher than the carrying
amount by % 579.68 (31 March 2023 2 477.46) and an analysis of the calculation’s sensitivily towards change in key assumptions did not identify any probable scenarios
where the CGU recoverable amount would fall below their carrying amount.

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the CGU. The calculation was based on the following key
assumplions:
i The anticipated annual revenue growth and margin included in the cash flow projections far five years are based on past experience, actual operating results and the
future business plan.
ii. The terminal growth rate is 5.00% (3| March 2023: 5.00%) representing management view on the future long-term growth rate.
iil. Post-tax discount rate of 15.09% (31 March 2023; 14.58%) was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs. T he discount rate was estimated based
on the weighted average cost of capital. Pre-tax discount rate is 20.72% (31 March 2023: 19.48%).
iv. Budgeted earning before interest,tax,depreciation and amortisation ("EBITDA") growth rate (average of next five years) of 15.00 % (31 March 2023: 15.00 %) was
applied in management forecast, which represents a conservalive revenue to EBIDTA ratio of 12% (average of next five years) (31 March 2023: [2%) which is in line
with long term estimates and historic profitability of management. = "i“‘.\\.\
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(Amount in T millions, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

Note 6 - Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Group has entered into agreements for leasing land and office premises. Land leases typically run for a year of 3 - 75 years. The leases for office premises typically run

for a year of 6 years after which the lease 1s subject to termination at the option of lessee or lsssor.

a. Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below :

Right-of-use assets - building As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 8.24 5.76
Additions 33.79 6.70
Additions on acquisition of subsidiary (Refer note 47) 1.62 i
Depreciation for the year (9.49) (4.22)
Balance as at end of the year (A) 34.16 8.24
Right-of-use assets - land As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 144,80 87.52
Additions 2372 61,15
Additions on acquisition of subsidiary (Refer note 47) 289.10 -
Depreciation for the year - (4.92) (3.87)
Balance as at end of the year (B) 432.70 144.80
Right-of-use assets (C=(A)+(B})) 486.86 153.04
b. The aggregate depreciation expense on right-of-use assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statemen! of Profit and Loss.
¢. Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and reconciliation of mevemnents to cash flows arising from financing activities during the year |
Lease liabilities included in the balance sheet Asat As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current 9.75 3.96
Non-current 23.22 13.84
Total 32,97 17.80
Balance as at beginning of the year 17.80 9.86
Additions 20.98 13.29
Additions on acquisition of subsidiary (Refer note 47) 1.6l -
Accreditation of interest 271 1.86
Payment of lease liabilities (12,12) (7.21)
Balance as at end of the year 32,98 17.80

d. As at year end date, the Group is not exposed to future cashilows for extension / lermination options, residual value guarantees and leases not commenced to which

lessee is committed.

e. The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted eash flows As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than one year 11.11 5.56
After one year but not longer than three years 2545 7.14
More than three years 41.92 41.92
Total 78.48 84.62
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(dmount in ¥ millions, excepl for shave dati unless otherwise stated)

f The Group does not [ace a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease
liahilities as and when they fall due.

g The Group has also taken certain office premises and residential premises (used as guest house) on lease with cantract terms within one year. These leases are short-
term. The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities for these leases. The expenses relating fo short-term leases for which the
recognition exemption has been applied have been charged to the Staternent of Profit and Loss on straight line basis.

h. The table below provides details regarding amounts reeognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expenses relating to short-term leases 3.63 1.14
[nterest on lease liabilities 2.72 1.86
Depregiation expense 14.40 809
Total 20,75 11.09
i. The following are the amounts recognized in the Statement of Cash Flow:
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Expenses relating to short-term leases 3.63 1.14
Paymenlt of lease liabilities 12,12 7.21
Total cash outflow for leases (including short term leases) 15.75 8,35

j. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at the date of origination of lease is 8.94% - 11.36% (31 March 2023 8.94% - 11.36%)

Note 7: Investments

Non-current investments
Investments in equity shares
Unguoted equity shares (ol cost)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

- Shivalik Solid Wasle Management Limited 0.00n 0.00"
250 equity shares (31 March 2023 : 250) of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up (31 March 2023 % :10)
0.00~ 0.00™
Agpregate book value of unquoted investments 0.00n 0,00
A The total value of shares in absolute value was T 2,500/~ but for reporting rounded upto  0.00 million
Note 8 - Loans- Non current As at Asat
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loan to employees 732 478
7.32 4.78
Note 9 -Other non-current financial asset As at As at
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated ) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security depasit 24.48 5.40
Balance with banks-deposits accounts with original maturity more than 12 months # 121 0.19
25.09 5.59
# These deposits include restricted bank deposits T 1.20 (31 March 2023: T 0.16) pledged as margin moncy.
Note 10 - Other tax assets (net) As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance income tax and tax deducted at source [net of provision for income tax of T Nil][31 March 2023: - 727
2430 25]
- T.27
Note 11 - Other non-current assets Asat As at
(unsecnred considered good, unless otherwise stated ) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Capital advances 188.19 554.00
Prepaid expenses® 3.76 243
191.95 556.43

* Prepaid expenses includes CSR asset of 177 ( 31 March 2023: T Nil ) as excess spent on CSR activities and it can be carry forward upto immediately succeeding

three financial years as per General Circular No. 14 /2021.
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Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLCI50371)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(dmonnt in 2 millions, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

Note 12 - Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realizable valug)

Raw materials #*
Stores and spares
Work-in-progress®
Finished goods #*
Stock-in-trade #¥
Packing material #%

Notes:
# Tncludes goods-in-transit
- Raw material
- Finighed goods
- Stock-in-trade
- Packing material
* Tnelude provision for obsolete inventory
- Row Materials
- Finished poods
- Work-in- progress
- Stock-in-trade
- Packing material

Note 13 - Trade receivables
funsecnred considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables from related party (refer note 39)
Less; expected credit loss allowance

Break-up:

Trade receivables considered good - secured

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
683.86 575.21
12.69 1.24
23847 180.61
82.00 3244
246,79 202.98
170.15 180.68
1,440.16 1,173.16
2829 66,68
28.68 19.68
12.37 2.53
4 091
3.90 -
6.06 -
10.57 -
1.63 =
7.20 445
As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

2.91092 2,652.11

15.20 14.81
(4124) (1474}

2,884.88 2,652_18
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

2,802.37

Trade receivables cansidered good - unsecured 2,661.17
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 6.38 5.5
Trade recsivables - eredit impaired 27.38 =
2,926.13 2,666.92
Less: expected credit loss allowance
- Trade receivables considered good - seeured - =
- Trade receivables considered good - unsecured (7.49) (8.99)
- Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk {5.38) (5.75)
- Trade receivables - credit impaired (27.38) -
Total trade receivables 2.884.88 2,652.18
Movement in expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables: As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 14.74 11.56
Additions during the year 14.25 3.18
Additions on acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 47) 1225 -
Balance at the end of the year 41.24 14,74
Trade receivable ageing:
ling for following years from due date Gross Expected Net trade
Unbilled Not Due <6 6months 1yearto2 2yearto >3 trade eredit receivables
revenue months  to 1 year vears 3 years vears receivabl loss
As at 31 March 2024
Undisputed trade receivable - considered good 2131 191472 837.90 43.50 21.96 0.87 - 2,890.26 (538) 2,884.88
Undisputed trade receivable - considered doubiful - 325 1.90 1272 7.39 - 245 1. (27.71) "
Undisputed trade receivable - ¢redit impaired - - - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade recetvable - considered good - - - - - - 211 211 (2.11) -
Disputed trade receivable - considered doubtful - - - - 043 339 137 5.1% (5.19) -
Disputed trade receivable - eredit impaired - - - - - - 085 0.85 (0.83) -
Total 2131 1917.97  889.8D 56,22 29.78 426 # 292612 (41.24) 2,884.88
Outstanding for following years from due date Gross Expected Net trade
Unbilled Not Due <6 Gmonths 1yearin2 2yearto >3 trade credit receivables
revenue months _fo I year years 3 years years receivabl loss
As at 31 March 2023
Undisputed trade receivable - considered poad 17.58 2,145.97 440,435 50.73 3.88 027 - 2,658.88 (6.70) 2,652.18
Undisputed trade receivable - considered doubtful - - - - - - 1.19 1.19 (1.19) =
Undispuled trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - - - - - 219 2.2% (2.29) -
Disputed trade receivable - considered doubtiul - - - 021 301 1.3 - 4.56 (4.56) . -
Disputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 17.88  2,145.97 440.45 50.94 6.89 2!652. 18
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Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246 MH2005PLC150371)
Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amonnt in F millions, excep! for share data unless oithenyise stated)

Note 14 - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank:
- In current accounts
Cash on hand

Nuote 15 - Bank Balance other than above

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months i

ft These deposits include restricted bank deposits ¥ 26.56 (31 March 2023: 2 118.50) pledged as margin motiey.

Mote 16 - Loans - Current
fimsecured considered goad, unlesy aifierwise stated)

Loan to employees

Note 17 - Other eurrent financial assets
(unsecured considersd good unless othenwvise stated )

[nterest accrued but not due on fixed deposils
Exporl incentive recoverable :
Security deposit

Recoverable from others

PO expenses recoverable *

Advance to employees

Note 18 - Other current assets
(imsecured consideved good, unfess otherwise stated)

Balances with povernment authorities
Advances to suppliers

Advances to employees

Right to return goods

Prepaid expenses *#

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

116.77 34.87
051 (.38
117.28 3525
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
750.20 153.50
750,20 153.50
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
439 1011
4.39 10,11
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
12.40 266
21.67 1.7
4020 1121
2.03 -
" 46.25
- 0.11
76.30 7194
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
443,38 244 02
25,05 T8
226 286
1884 14.84
3420 59.03
YR

* In connection with the proposed Initial Public Offer (*IPO”) of equity shares of the Holding Company, expenses incurred by the Lolding Company towards the proposed
PO of equity shares held by the selling sharcholder amounting to T Nil (31 Mareh 2023:% 46.35) was presented as "IPQ expenses recoverable” included under "other
current financial assels” and recovered from the selling shareholders (as per the offer agreement) during the year ended 31 March 2024 and expenses incurred by the
Holding Company in relation to its plan of raising funds from capital market through the proposed IPO amounting to 2 Nil (31 March 2023: T 39.19) was included in

"prepaid expenses” under "other current assets” and adjusted towards the securities premium during the year ended 31 March 2024,

# Prepaid expenses includes CSR asset of T 3.08 (31 March 2023:2 Nil ) as excess spent on CSR activities and it can be carry forward upto immediately succeading three

financial years as per General Circular No, 14 /2021,




Innova Captnb Limited (CIN: UZ42460H2005PLCL50371)
Notes to the C lidated Fi fal Stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in & mitlions, excepi for shave dota unless othenwise staied)

Note 19 - Share capital

Authorized capital

Axat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 Mareh 2023

64,000,000 {31 March 2023; 64,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 cach ( 31 March 2023: ¥ 10 cach) 640.00 540,00

2,000,000 (31 March 2023; 2,000,000) cumulative compulsonly convertible preference share of ¥ 10 each ( 31 March 2023: T10) 20,00 20.00
660.00 660.00_

Equity share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

57,224,929 (31 March 2023:48,000,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 gach ( 31 March 2023: ¥ 10 cach) 572.25 480,00
Sﬂéﬁ 450.00

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

As per the memorandum of associatien, the Holding Company’'s authorized share capital consist of equity shares, Al equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Holding
Company's residual assets. The equity shares are enfitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, Sharcholders arc cntitled to one vate per equity share held in the Haolding Company.
On winding up of the Holding Company, the holders of equity sharcs will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Holding Company. remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts
in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

b) Rights, preferences and resirietions attached to cumulative compulsorily convertible preference share.
During year ended 31 March 2023, 1,412,430 cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares ("CCCPS”) have been issued as fully paid with a par value of INR 334 per share . The
CCCPS holders of the Holding Company, in terms of the underlying agreement, have exit rights including requiring the Holding Company to buy back shares held by them where upon the
conversion Tatio is alse not fixed. Each CCCPS shall entitle 1ts holder to preferential dividend at the rate of 0.01% (zero point zero one percent) per annum (“Preferential Dividend") of its face
value. The Prefercntial Dividend is participative and cumulative and shall acerue from year to year. [n addition to the Preferential Dividend, each CCCPS shall entitle its holder to also participate
pari passu in any dividends paid 10 the holders of common equity shares of the Halding Company (*Equity Shares™) on a pro-rata as converted basis. The helders of the CCCPS shall not be
entitled to vore on any matter except to the extent permilted under the Companics Act 2013 or other applicable laws. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has allotted 14,12,430
equity shares having face value of 10 cach in the conversion ratio of 1:1 towards Cumulative Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCCPS™) on 01 December 2023 at a price of 2 448
rmr chars
¢) Reconeiliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the bepinning and end of the reporting year:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. of Amount No, of shares Amount

shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 48,000,000 480.00 1,200,000 120.00
Sub-division of | share of face value 100/- each into
10 share of face value 10/~ cach effective April 4, - = 10,800,000 -
2023 (Increase in shares on account of sub-division]*
Add:- Benus shares issued during the year - - 16,000,000 360.00
Add:- Issue of share capital during the yeari 9,224,529 9225
Balance at the end of the year 57,224,920 §72.25 48,000,000 480.00

* The Sharcholders of the Company, at the Extra ardinary peneral meeting held on April 4, 2022, had approved the sub-division of one equity share of face value 100/~ each (fully paid-up) into 10
equity share of face valug 10/- each, The record date for the said sub-division was sct at April 4, 2022,

# The Company has allotted 14,12,420 equity shares having face value of ¥ 10 each in the conversion ratio of 1:1 towards Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCCPS") on
01 December 2023 at a price of ¥ 448 per share,

The Company, at its [PO meeting held on 26 December 2023 approved allotment of 7,142,857 Equity Shares of 210 each pursuant to Initial Public Offering at a securities premium of T438 per
share under Fresh [ssue and offer for sale of 5,580,357 Equity Shares at an Offer Price of 448 per Equity Share, to the respective applicants in various categories, in ferms of the basis of
allotment approved in consultation with the authorized represemative of BSE Limited and NSE. The equity shares of the Company were listed on B3E Limited and Mational Stock Exchange of
India Limited on 29 December 2023, (Refer Note 51)

d) Details of shareholders holding mare than § percent equity shares in the Group:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
No. of % holding No. of shares % holding in the class
shares in the class
Manoj Kumar Lohariwala # 16,626,446 2907 19,036,000 39,66
Vinay Kumar Lobariwala # 12 482,875 21.81 14,436,000 30,08
Chian Parkash Aggarwal 12,391 464 2163 14,512,000 3023

# ldentified as promoters




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CAmont in & millians, excepr for shave dota unless othervise stated)

¢) Bonus shares, shares buybnck and issue of shares for consideration other than in cash during five years immediately preceding 31 Mareh 2024,
During the five years immediately preceding 31 March 2024 (‘the year'), the Company have not issued any bonus shares except given below. Further, no shares have beert issued for consideration
other thau cash,

As at Asat As at Asat As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No. of shares Ratio  No., of shares Ratio  No. of shares Ratio No. of shares Ratio  No. of shares Ratio  No. of shares Ratio
Bonus issue = = 36,000,000  3:1 = = - - = = = 5
f) Promaoter Shareholdi
Promoter's name As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
No. of shares % of total shares % change during Nao. of shares % of total shares % change during the
the year year
Mang) Kumar Lohariwala 16,636,446 29.07 12.61% 19,036,000 39.66 -
Vinay Kumar Lohariwala 12,482,875 2LE1 13.53% 14,436,000 30.08 -
Nate 20 - Other equity As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Capital reserve
Balance ar the beginning of the year 044 0.44
Add: Addition on acquisition of business (alse refer note 47 ) 711.95 -
Balance at the end of the year 712.39 0.44
B Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 228462 1,965 62
Less - Bonus share issued during the year - (360.00)
Add: Profit for the year 943,45 679.54
Add: Other comprehensive gain / (loss) for the year (remeasurement of defined benefit plans, nct of tax) 18.89 {0.54)
Balance at the end of the year 3,246.96 2,284.62
C Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Tssued during the year
-CCPS converted G18.04 -
-Tssued to 360 One special opportunities fund Series 9 146.65 -
-Issued to 360 One special opportunitics fund Serigs 10 146.65 -
-Public Issue made on 29 December 2023 3,128.57 -
Less: Share issue expenses (263.17) -
Balance at the end of the year 3,777.34 -
Total (A+B+C) 7.736,69 2,285.06

Nature of reserves:

a, Capital reserve: Capital reserve represents the accumulated excess of the fair value of net assets acquired under business combination over the aggregate considecation ransferred.
b. Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned tll date, less any dividends or other distributions paid to sharcholders.

¢, Securities premium: Securities pramium represents the excess consideration received by the Company over the face value of the shares fssued to sharcholders.
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Note 21 - Berrowings

A. Non-current borrowings

Asat

Asat

e 31March2024 31 March 2023
Secured:
From hanks
Termn loan (I 2.179.66 634,19
{insecured:
From Others
Deposits from directors (refer note 39) (1 = 249.90
Cumulative compulsorly convertible preference shares V) - 468.45
Total non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 2,179.66 1,372.54
Less : Current maturities of non-current borrowings (97.68) (3097
2.081.98 1,341.77
B. Currcat borrvowings As at As at
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Secured
TFrom Banks
Cash credit ("CC') limit 48] 230,93 0.84
Working capital demand loan ('WCDL) (3] = 973,69
Current maturities of non current borrowings 97.68 30.77
Unsecured
From Banks
Credit card I 7.48 485
336.09 1,010.15
(1) Notes: Non-current Current Non-current Current
Bank Name Nature of facility * Rate of Repayment terms Security (Note 11) Asat As at As at As af]
interest 31 March 2024{ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023| 31 March 2023
%o (per
State Bank of India Cash Credit Limit () |6 Month - |Equilable - 213.20 -
MCLR + mortgage (frst
0.10% charge)on (b), (e}
WCDL (3) 9lday T - |and (d), First pari - - < 500.00
bill linked passu charge on (i)
along with (j)
Cash Credit Limit () EBLR + - |Equitable - - - 0.35
2.00% mortgage (fest
charge) on (d), ()
{o) and along with
(-
Ternm Loan (%)* 3 Month +| 96 monthly instalments starting| Equitable 682.71 - - -
MCLR  |fom October 2024 aftcr an mortgage (First
initial meraterium of 16 months |charge) on
(e)(b).(e)(d)
along with (a) and
()]
Yes Bank Limited WCDL (2) Ovemnight - |First pari passu - - - 300.00
MIBOR + charge on (i), (b),
1.28% (c) and {d} along
with (3).
CC limit () Spread of - 7.72 - -
0.05%+1
Month
HDFC Bank Term Loan 3 M T bill |32 quarlerly instalments from | First pari passu 1496.95 - 492 87 -
H* +1.63% |December 2024 after initial charge on (b), (¢)
moratorivm of 24 months on |, (h) and (ijalong
repayment of principle (ull with (a) and (j).
September 2024} with monthly
interest payment from
| December 2022
Credit Card () - -1 - 748 - 4 85
WCDL (%) 1.72% = [tz Ghand (1) - - - 113.69
Cash Credit Limit {3} M T Bill (g) (1) and (q) - 10.01 - 0.05
+ 1.69%
spread (31
March
2023: M T|
Bill +
The Hongkong and Term Loan TBLR + |84 monthly instalments from | First pari passu - - 110.57 -
Shanghai Banking #* 323% December 2021 after initial charge on (b}, (¢),
Corporation Limited moratorium yvear of 6 months  |(I) and (i),
("HSBC Ltd") (till November 2021} along with (a) and
Tern Loan TBLR + |78 monthly instalments from  [() - -
(T 3.23% March 2023 till August 2028

g ey $
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The Hongkeng and Nature of facility * Rate of Repayment terms Seeurity (Note IT) As at As at As at As at
Shanghai Banking interest 31 March 2024} 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Corporation Limited % (per
("HSBC Ltd") H
WCDL (%) 1M T-bill - |First pani passu - - - 60.00
+1.34% charge on (b), (2)
and (1) along with
Q)
Cash Credit Limit (3) | Overnight - |First pan passu - - - 044
MCLR + charge an (b), (c} )
0.05% and (1) along with
() and( j).
T loans include the curvent maturities of non-curvent borrowings 2,17%.66 238,41 654.19 979.38
Note [1: Security details
S, No. Security details
(a) Assets exclusively funded by the respective term loan lenders
(b) Factory land and building comprised in Khata Khatauni no. 17 min/ 136, Khasra no 2123/1281, situated at Hilltop Industrial Estate, near EPIP, Phase-1,
Jharmajri, Distt Solan, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh, ad ring total area 14 bigha.
(c) Factory land and building situated at Hill top Industrial Estatc, near EPIP, Phase- 1, Jharmajn, Distt Selan, Baddi, Himachal Pradesh adimeasuring 21,17 bigha,
(d) Factory land and building situated at Plot No. 81 A, EPIP, Phase I, Jharmajri, Baddi, Solan, Hi hal Pradesh, ad ing 2000 3q. meters and 81 B, EPIP,
Phase I, Jharmajri, Baddi, Salan, Himachal Pradesh ad ing 2000 sq. msters. This property was acquired by the Holding Company as part of slump sale from
Innova Captab (partnership firm) as at 31 March 2021 and was transferred in the name of the Holding Company in the year ending on 3| March 2023,
() Land and building located at Jammu, situated at industrial plot measuring 90 Kanals situated at SIDCO Industrial Complex Ghatti Kathua Phase-11 covered under
Khasra No 11 min 12.27 min village Nonan District Kathua and plant and machinery located at factory unit in Jammu.
() Industrial Property located at Plot No. 320, Industrial Area, Phase- |, Panchkula, Haryana.
() Industiial property ad ing 33,000 sq. meters situated at Plot No.63 EPIP Phasel, Baddi, District Solan, Ji jn, owned by the Subsidiary Company,
(h) Entire movable fixed assets of the Halding Company created out of bank finance
(i} Entirc current assets (present and futwre) of ithe Holding Compan
1] Unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantee of Manoj Kumar Lohariwala, Vinay Kumar Lohariwala and Gian Prakash Agarwal for 2 750 each
(k) 30% share pledge of the Holding Company held by the promoters which has been released in year ended 31 March 2023
(1 Primary stock and debtors of the Subsidiary Company
{(m) Entire lixed assets (inovable and immovable) (present and furure) of the Holding Company created out of bank finance
(n) FEntite movable fixed assets of the Tnnova Captab (partership firm) that were acquired by the Holding Company as part of slump sale from Innova Captab
(partnership firm}) as at 31 March 2021
(o) Stocks of raw marenial, stack-in-process, finished goods including stocks in transit and receivables arising there from both present and futurs of Innova Captab
(partnership firm)
(p} Stocks of raw material, stock-in-process, finished goods including stocks in transit and receivables arising there from both present and future af'the Holding
(q) 100% corporate guarantee from Helding company, Yinay kumar Lohariwala and Manoj Kumar Lohariwala.

Note T11: Deposit from directors

The Holding Company had taken deposits from Manoj Kumar Lohariwala and Vinay Kumar Lobariwala, that camy interest rate of 7% per annum and were repayable on demand. The terms
of repayment were amended in year ending on 31 March 2021 on the basis addendum to the loan agreement ("addendum”) dated 31 March 2022 and as per the addendum, deposits arc
repayable on 31 March 2027. Further deposits from dircctors include total loan of T 102.50 (31 March 2023; 2 102.50) from Gian Parkash Aggarwal who ceased to be a director with effect
from 1 April 2022,

MNote 1V: Closure of Charges
The company is in process of closure of charges related to the loan repaid as at year ended on 31 March 2024,

MNote Vi Cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares

The Holding Company had issued 1,412,430 cumulative compulsorily convertible preference share (*CCCPS') at face value of T 10 and at premium of T 344 per CCCPS, during the year
ended on 31 March 2023. The CCCPS holders of the Holding Company, in terms of the underlying agreement, have exit rights that include requiring the Holding Company to buy back
shares held by them upon occurrence of an event not under the conmal of the Holding Company and where upon the conversion, the ratio of conversion i3 also not fixed but dependent upon
share price at time of occurtence of such event. Accordingly, since both the conversion and redemption feature is conditional upon an event not under the control of the issuer, and may
require entity to deliver cash, which issuer cannot avoid, or convert the CCCP3 into equity shargs, where the fixed condition is not met, therefore, CCCPS have been considered a “non-
current hybrid” financial liability, with a host non-derivative liability component for the interest and prineipal amount amounting to 401.30 million and a separable derivative component
amounting to ¥ 98,70 million, on the initial date of recognition as both the ratio and timing of conversion was uncertain . As per the requirements of IND AS 109, the derivative component
has been re-measured at fir value of T Nil (31 March 2023 T: 78.94) on reporting date and the change in fair valus of 7 19.36 has been recognized as a loss in the Statement of Profir and
Lass for the year ended 31 March 2024 ( 31 March 2023; Gain of T 19.76).

€. The group has filed quanterly rerums/statement of current assets with banks for the below mentioned quarters and there are certain variances between the amounts reported and amounts as
per the books of accounts which are shown below:

Innova Captal Limited

State Bank of India Yes Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited, HSBC
Limited=
Quarter end date Particulars Amount  Amount Amount of  Amount as per Amount as Amount of difference Statement
as per as difference books of aceount reported subsequently
hooks of _reported rectified
30 June 2022 Inventony 1,052.23  1,021.93 30.30 1,052.23 1.021.93 No
Trade Receivable 1,764.77  1,722.98 41,81 1,764,77 1,722.96 Mo
Trade Payable 1,563.33  1.575.96 (12.63) 1,563.33 1.575.96 No
30 September 2022 Inventory 388.38 B28.60 (0.02) 888.58 388.60 Mo
Trade Receivable 235557 235560 (0.03) 2,355.57 2,355.60 No
Trade Payable 122534  1,223.50 1.84 1,225.34 1,223.50 No
1 December 2022 Inventory 103884  1,062.40 (23.36) 1,038.84 1.062.40 No
Trade Receivable 235969 2,359.20 0.49 2.359.69 2.359.20 Ne
Trade Payable 1,945.72  1.571.50 (25.78) 1.545.72 1,571.50 No
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State Bank of India

Yes Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited, HSBC

m

Limited®
Quarter end date Particulars Amount  Amount Amounnt of  Amount as per Ameount as Amount of difference Statement
as per as difference books of account reported subsequently
bonks of  reported rectified
account
31 March 2023 Tnventory 972.72 9R3.38 (12.66) 97272 985,38 {12.66) Mo
Trade Receivable 2,296.76 2.307.08 (10.32) 2,296.76 2,307.08 {10.32) Mo
Trade Payable 1480.84  1,480.85 (0.01) 1.480.84 1,480 85 (0.013 No
30 June 2023 Inventory B98.87 921.08 (22.21) 808.87 921.08 (22.21) No
Trade Receivable 2,544.89 2,497.30 47.59 2,544.89 2,497.30 47.59 Na
Trade Payable 1,687.12  1,641.31 4581 1,687.12 1,641.31 45.81 No
30 Seprember 2023 Inventory 914.94 914.94 - 914.94 914.94 - No
Trade Receivable 231005 231005 - 2.310.05 2,310.03 - No
Trade Payable 1,676.27 1.676.27 - 1,676.27 1,676.27 - No
31 December 2023 Inventory B34.17  854.17 - 83417 85417 - No
Trade Receivable 265971 265971 - 2,659.71 2,659.71 - No
Trade Payable 211070 2.086.32 24.38 2,110.70 2.086.32 2438 No
31 March 2024 Inventory 939.90  940.98 [1.08) 939.90 940,98 {1.08) No
Trade Receivable 217388 2,173.54 0.34 2,173.88 2,173.54 034 No
Trade Payable 1,535.12  1,519.06 16.06 1,535.12 1.519.06 16.06 Mo

* Stock statement from September, 2023 onwards have not been submitted to HSBC Limited, since the Company is not utilising TP limit.
Univentis Medicare Limited

HDFC Bank Limited

Quarter end date Particulars Amount as per Amount as Amount of statement subsequently rectified
books of account reported difference
30 June 2022 Inventory 27228 272.28 - No
Trade Receivable 519.53 519.53 - Mo
Trade Payable 164.16 164.16 - No
30 September 2022 Inventory 23812 23812 - No
Trade Receivable 644,70 644.70 - No
Trade Payable 213.26 213.26 - No
31 December 2023 Inventory 24867 248.67 ] No
Trade Receivable 6353.93 653,93 - Ne
Trade Payable 430.43 430.43 - No
31 March 2023 Inventory 21%.30 219.41 (0.11) No
Trade Reccivable 666.51 669,66 (3.13) Mo
Trade Payable 415.08 417.69 (2.61) Mo
30 June 2023 Inventory 270.27 27016 0.1l Yes
Trade Receivable 662,592 662.47 0.12 Yes
Trade Payable 564.68 558.44 6.24 Yes
30 September 2023 Inventory 25791 237.36 0.55 Yes
Trade Receivable T16.61 71947 (2.86) Yes
Trade Payable 416,81 410.84 5.97 Yes
31 December 2023 Inventory 264.68 260.06 4.62 Yes
Trade Receivable 789,25 788.1% 1.06 Yes
Trade Fayable 492.90 486.69 6.21 Yes
31 March 2024 Inventory 269.74 269,74 - Mo
Trade Receivable 724.92 724.92 - Na
Trade Payable 390,84 360.75 0.09 No

As informed to us, the Holding Company submits drawing power (DP) statements within 20 days from cnd of the respective quarters and subsidiary company submits wihtin 15 days from the
end of respective quarters, in which DP limit is computed as per the terms and conditions of the sanction letter. The quarterly Tetur
incorporating the impact of certain book closure adjustiments pertaining to goods in transit, advances from customers and advances to vendars w.rt. inventory, rade receivables and trads
payables respectively, Further. the actual utilization of working capital remained within the bank sanction/DP limits for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Undrawn borrowing
Innova Captab Limited

nent sub

. Further, in: the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 the actual ulilization of working capital remained within the bank sanction limits.

to banks w

ere prepared before

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Bank Nature of facility Denomination of | Sanctioned|  Sanetioned Total drawn| Total undrawn|  Total drawn|  Total undrawn
currency of |a ing ing ¥ ( FY asat 31| amountasatl amountasat| amount as at 31
facility I(FY 2022-23) March 2024| 31 March 2024] 31 March 2023 March 2023
2023-24)
YES Bank Limited Cash credit I 40000 73000 1.72 39228 300001 450.00
SBI Bank Cash credit 7 630.00 850.00 213.20 436.80 500.35 349,63
HDFC Bank Limited Cash credit 7 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 118.53 81.47
HSBC Limited Cash credit Ed - 100.00 -] - 6,44 39.56
3Bl Bank Term Loan ¥ 200.00 - 682.71 117.29 - -
HSBC Limited Term Loan 3 - 200.00 - - 200.00 :
HDFC Bauk Limited Term Loan i 1,500.00 2.300.00 1,496.95 3.05 495,13 1.804.87
Univentis Medicire Limited As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Bank Nature of facility Denomination of currency of |Sanctioned Total drawn | Total undrawn (Total deawn | Total undrawn
facility amountin ¥ amount as at 31 |amount asat  |amount as at  |amount as at 31
March 2024 31 March 2024 3 023|March 2023
HDIC Bank Limited Cash credit z 300,001 10.01 299.95




Innova Caplab Limited (CIN: U24246NH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amennd in ¢ millions, except for share data unless otherwise statvd)

Note 22 - Other non-current financinl linbilities As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Derivative

- Component of cumulative compulsorily convestible preference shares® - 78.94

— 78.94

* Refer note 21(Y) .

Note 23 - Provisions As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

A. Non-current
Provision for emplayee benefits:

Prowvision for compensated absences 13,86 6.13
Provision for gratuity (refer note 43) 71.58 22 34
91,44 28.97
B. Current
Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for compensated absences 6,57 1.63
Provision for gratuity (refer note 43) 2398 420
30.55 5.83
Note 24 - Other non eurrent liabilities Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred government grant 5 0.85
- 0.85
Mote 25 - Trade payables As at Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13.60 573
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises # 1,782.95 1,579.10
1,796.58 1,584.83

Also, the Ministry of Micro, Small and Mediwm Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterpriscs should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. The information regarding Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group. Refer note 40 for the disclosure in
respect of amounts payable to such enterprises as at year end that has been made in the Consolidated Financial statement based on information available with the Group,

# Includes due to related parties ( refer note 39)

Trade payables ageing schedule:

As at 31 March 2024 Unbilled Outstanding for following years from due Total
date of pnyment
Mot due <lyear Lyeurto2 2year =3 years
yeurs tn 3
Cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - 12,09 1.53 - = 13.62
Qutstanding dues of creditars other than micro and small enterprises 16580 1,388.59 217.60 007 - 0.03 1,772.11
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Disputed dues of ¢reditors other than micro and small enterprises - - 7.55 2.56 - 0.71 10.82
Tatal 165.80 1,400.68 226.68 2.63 - 076 1,796.55
As at 31 March 2023 Qutstanding for following years from due Total
date of payment
TUnbilled Notdue <lyear lyearto2 2ycar =3 years
years to3
years
Ontstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - 231 342 - - - 573
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1346 1,296.06  264.56 0.19 4.83 - 1,579.10
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises * = " - = = -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4 = - 2t - 2 -
Total 1346 1,29837 267.98 0.19 4.83 - 1,584.83
Note 26 - Other current financial liabilities As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 10.23 12.06
Employee related payables 95.82 6245
Capifal creditors
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises® — -
- Tatal outstanding dues of other than micro and small enterprises 139.32 5.77
Secunty deposit 46.50 3435
Payable to selling shareholders ( refer note 51) 388 -
29578 114.63

* Tefer note 40 for disclosures required under MSMED Act.




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246 MH2005PLC150371)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

dmaonnt in T millions, except for share data uniess otherwise siated)

Note 27 - Other current liabilities

Contract liabilities
Statutory dues

Refund liability

Deferred government grant

MNote 28 - Current tax liabilitics (net)

Provision for income tax [net of advanec tax of T 284,95 | [net of advance tax 31 March 2023 : Nil]

Note 29 - Revenue from operations

Sale of finished goods
Sale of traded goods
Sale of services

Other operating revenues
- Export incentives

- Scrap sales

Notes:

a. Reconciliation of revenue recognized (cxcluding other operating revenues) with the contract price is as follows:

Contract price

Adjustments for discounts and rebates
Refund liability
Revenue recognized

b. Contract Balances

el

Contract liabilities, which are included in “other current liabilities” *

* Considering the nature of business of the Group, the above unbilled revenue generally materializes as revenue within the same operating cyele,

. Revenue from sale of goods and services disaggregated by primary

seographical market

India
Quitside India
Total revenue from contracts with customers

d. Timing of Revenue recognition
Praduct transferred at point in time
Product and services transferred over time
Revenue from contract with customers

Note 30 - Other income

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost

- an bank deposits

- on lean to subsidiary

Amortisation of government grant

Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

Gain on fair valuation of compulsorily convertible preference shares
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)

Liability written back

Insurance claim received

Miscellanzous income

Note 31 Cost of materials consumed

Raw material
Packing material

%

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
131.00 24.67
19.85 11.37:
25.39 20.06
0.42 -
176.66 56.10
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
9.46 2
9.46 =

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

9,850.24 8,298.32
788.91 912.07
130.44 43.59

39.19 6.95
427 287
10,813.03 9,263.80
10,818.51 9.410.96
(23.53) (136.92)
(25.39) (20.06)
10,769.59 0,253.98
131.00 24.67

TFor the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

8,323.13 8.447.35
2,446 46 806.63
10,769.59 9,253.98
9,292.87 5,399.55
1,476.72 3,854.43
10,769.59 9,253.98

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

35.02 7.11
226 -
0.43 21.52
0.33 2.86

- 19.76

42.12 32.28

27.98 -

11.55 -
520 8.45

124.89 91.98

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

547122 5,076.64
1.489.99 1,380.42
6,961.21 6,466.06




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in T millions, excepi for share data unless otherwise stated)

Movement of raw materials consumption (including purchased components and packing material consumed)

Particulars

Inventory at the beginning of the year®

Add: Purchases

Add: Inventory on acquisition of business [refer note 47]
Less: Inventory at the end of the year™

* Includes goods-in-transit and provision for obselete inventory
Note 32 Purchase of stock-in-trade

Purchase of stock in trade

Note 33 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
stock-in-trade

Opening balance

- Finished goods

- Work-in-progress

- Stock-in-trade

- Right to return goods

Add: Tnventory on acquisition of subsidiary (refer nete 47)
- Finished goods
- Work-in-progress

Less: Utilised as CSR expenditure
- Stock-in-trade

Less: Closing balanee
- Finished goods

- Work-in-progress

- Stock-in-trade

- Right to return poods

Note 34 - Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 43)
Stalf welfare expenses

Note 35 - Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :

- on borrowings (other than cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares)
- on cumulative compulsarily convertible preference shares

- on lease liabilities

Interest to others

Other borrowing cost

* Includes interest on shortfall of income tax of T 1.11 [ 31 March 2023: 30.12]

Note 36 - Depreciation and amertization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 5a)
Amortization of other intangible assels (refer note 5b)
Diepreciation on right-of-use asscts (refer note 6)

For the year ended

31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

757.13 852,06
6,893.84 6,371.13
176.94 -

366.70 757.13
6,961.21 6,466.06

For the year ended
31 March 2024

35544

For the year ended
31 March 2023

44791

355.44

447.91

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

32.44 82.64
180.61 117.94
202.98 233.79
14.84 8.26
56.44 4
71.79 =
0.01 10.11
38.00 3244
238.67 180.61
246,79 20298
18.84 14.84
(33.21) 1.65
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
836.53 503.05
50.53 32.36
19.35 12.56
906.61 547.97
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

139.96 97.82
66.02 67.15
2.72 1.86
327 22.53
2.59 10.37
214.56 199,73

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

143.22 101.08
1.95 1.60
14.40 8.09
159.57 110.77




Innova Captal Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amoint in & millions, except for share deata unless otherwise stated)

Note 37 - Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Power and fuel 203.90 95.14
Stores and spares consumed 7255 42.92
Sub contracting charges 84,88 2249
Packing charges 78.31 70.60
Lab consumahles . 64,25 29.80
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 45.63 2600
- Building 6,30 308
- Others 13.24 867
Commission on sales 99.78 23,88
Sales promotion expense 1534 9.10
Freight charges 41.60 3945
Rates, fees and taxes 4592 49.95
Legal and professional fee (refer note (a) and () below) 40,36 17.12
CSR expenditure (refer note (c) below) 20.78 14.35
Travelling and conveyance 89.79 66.04
House keeping expense 26.05 18.76
Securily expenses 15.17 .56
Printing and stationery 10.99 6.69
Rent 3.63 1.14
Expected credit loss on trade receivables 14.20 1.19
Bad debts written off 545 436
Insurance 15,89 10.81
Director sitting fees - 202
Loss on fair valuation of cumulative compulsorily eonvertible preference shares 19.36 &
Loan to employee written off 5.10 -
Miscellaneous expenses 39.80 2062
1,078.47 663.74
(a) Includes payment to auditors (excluding goods and services tax) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As auditor:
- Statutory audit 923 4.00
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.50 0.20
Total 9.73 4.20
(b) Excludes payment to auditors (excluding goods and services tax) in relation to proposed IPO*
- Fees 3943 13.55
- Reimbursement of expenses 197 0.13
4T.45 13.68

* |n connection with the proposed Tnitial Public Offer (‘TPQ") of equity shares of the Holding Company, expenses incurred by the Holding Company towards the
proposed IPO of equity shares held by the selling shareholder amounting to Z Nil (Include auditor expenses) (31 March 2023:% 46.25) was presented as "IPO expenses
recoverable" included under "other current financial assets” and recovered from the selling sharcholders (as per the offer agreement) during the year ended 31 march
2024 and expenses incurred by the Holding Company in relation to raising funds from capital market through the 1PO amounting to ¥ Nil (Include auditor expenses)
(31 March 2023: ¥ 39.19) was included in "prepaid expenses” under "other current assets” and adjusted towards the securities premium during the year ended 31
March 2024,

(©) Details of CSR expenditure: For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year: 20.85 14,24
(ii) Amount approved by the baord to be spent during the year 20.85 14.24
(iii)} Amount of expenditure incurred on:
- Construction/acquisition of any asset: k! -
- On purposes other than above:* 19.89 22.37
(iv) Shortfall at the end of the year: NA NA

(v) Total of previous years shortfall:

(vi) Reason for shortfall:

(vii) Nature of CSR activities: Eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education,
promoting rural sports, art and culture, healthcare, destitule care and
rehabilitation, animal welfare and COVID-19 relief.

{viii) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard: 5.57 B 697

(ix) CSR expenditure amounting to  5.57 has been incurred by Univentis foundation through various implementing agencies,

*Prepaid expenses ineludes CSR asset of € 3.08 ( 31 March 2023:T Nil ) as excess spent on CSR activities and it can be carry forward upto immediately succeeding
three financial years as per General Circular No. 14 /2021 and also includes amount of 2 1.77 in Non current current prepaid expense (31 March 2023: Nil )




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MI12005PLC150371)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amemnnt in & millions, excepl for shave data inless otherwise stated)
Note 38 - Tax expense

a, Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss {(including other comprehensive income):

Current tirx:
- Current year
-Changes in estimates related to prior year

Deferred tax:
- Attribulable (o arigination and reversal of temporary differences
Total tax expense recognized

b. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

203.40 223.02
(0.10) (4.42)
59.40 19.63

352.70 238.23

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Profit before fax 1,295.29 917.95
Tax at India’s statutory tax rate of 25.17% 326.02 231.05
Incremental allowance under income tax act {3.04) (7.31)
Tax effect of non-deduchible expenses 28.96 19.09
Changes in estimales related o prior year (0.10) (4.42)
Income tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 351.84 238.41
€. Income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income
Tax eredit / (expense) arising on income and expenses recognized in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (0.86) 0.18
Total income tax recognized in other comprehensive income (0.86) 0.18
Bifurcation of the income tax recognized in other comprehensive income into:-
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.86) 0.18
(0.86) 0.18
d. Deferred tax balances reflected in the Balance Sheet: Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax asset 192.60 1.20
Deferred tax liability 4842 39.21
Deferred tax asscts / (liability) (net) 151.18 {38.01)
e. Movement in deferred tax balances
As at Recognized in Recognized in Other Acquisition of As at
01 April 2023 Statement of Comprehensive subsidiary# 31 Mareh 2024
Deferred tax lability Profit and Loss Ineome
Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961 over 38.80 {36.05) - 5358 76.74
Revaluation of Assets 3 % = F 2
Unbilled revenue 0.68 0.08 - - 0.76
Right of use asset 2.04 (1.12) - " 092
Deferred tax liability (A) 61.52 (37.08) - $3.98 78.42
Deferred tax asset
Excess depreciation as per Books over Income tax Act 1961 - (64.28) < 64.28 3
Expenses allowable on payment basis 12.51 1.60 (0.86) 27.57 40,82
Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables 376 6.63 - - 10.39
Lease linbilities 114 (1.87) . . (0.73)
Deferred income on grants 0.22 0.11) 3 2 0.11
Unrealised profit on stock 4.75 1.23 - - 6.00
Books losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation® = (44.83) - 210.73 165.90
Provision for obsolete inventory 1.13 5.98 - - 7.11
Deferred tax asset (B) 23.51 {95.63) {0.86) 302.58 229.60
Deferred tax (liability) / assets (net) (B-A) (38.01) (58.55) (0.86) 248.60 151.18
* Year wise breakup of book losses and unabsorbed depreciation
Assessment year B loss nt year year ended 31 March 2024
2016-17 Unabsorbed Depreciation 182.61
2017-18 Unabsorbed Depreciation 247.60
M018-19 Unabsorbed Depreciation 228.96
Total 659.17
# Refer note 47
As at Recognized in  Recognized in Other Acquisition of As at

Deferred tax liability

Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961 over books
Unbilled revenue

Right of use assets

01 April 2022 Statement of Comprehensive

subsidiary#

31 March 2023

Deferred tax liability (A)

Deferred tax asset

Expenscs allowable on payment basis

Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables
Lease liabilities

Deferred income on grants

Unrealised profit on stock

Provision tor obsolete inventery

Deferred tax asset (B)

Profit and Loss Income

37.47 21.33 - - 58.80
035 0.33 - - 0.68
1.44 0.61 204
39.26 2227 - - 61.52
10.19 2.14 0.18 - 12,51
3.42 0.34 - - 3.76
1.66 (0.32) - - 1.14
0.32 (0.10) - - 0.22
4.65 0.10 - - 4.75
0.65 0.48 = 113
20,89 244 0.18 23.51

{1837y {T9.8T) .18




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371})
Naotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in  millions, except for share deta unless otherwise stated)

Note 39 - Related parties

A. List of related, parties and nature of relutionship with whom transactions have taken place during the current and previous year.

Deseription of Relationship

Name of the Party

Key management personnel
("KMP')

Entities in which KMT and/or
their relatives have signifieant
influence

Mr, Manoj Kumar Lohariwala (Chairman & Whole Time Director)

Mr Vinay Kumar Lohariwala (Managing Director)

Mr. Jayant Vasudeo Rao (Whole Time Director)

Mr. Archit Aggarwal (Non-executive Director - w.e.[ 01 April 2022)

Ms. Priyanka Sibal (Independent Director- w.e.F 01 April 2022

Mr Sudhir Kumar Bassi (Independent Director- w.e.£ 01 April 2022)

Mr. Shirish Gundopant Belapure (Independent Director- w.e 01 April 2022)

Mr, Mahendar Korthiwada (Independent Director- w.e f01 April 2022)

Ms. Chhavi Lohariwala (Mon-executive Director)(till 1 April 2022)

Mr. Gian Parkash Aggarwal (Non-executive Director) (till 01 April 2022)

Mr. Pradosh Kumar (Mon Executive Independent Director) (&l 01 April 2022)

Mr. Anup Agarwal (Non Executive Independent Director) (1l 01 April 2022)

Mr. Purushottam Sharma (Executive Direclor )

Mr. Rishi Gupta {Chiel Financial officer) (w.e.f 01 April 2022) (till 26 April 2023)

Ms. Neeharika Shukla (Company Secretary) (w.e.09 May 2022)

Ms. Priyanka Jangid ( Company Secretary wee.f. | November 2022)

Mr, Mukesh Kumar Siyaram Singh (Key managerial personnel) (w.c.f from 30 June 2023)
Mr.Rajveer Singh (Company Secretary)(till 1 April 2022)

Ms. Shikha Kanwar (Company Secretary) (till 24th January 2022)

Mr. Gaurav Srivastva (Chief Financial officer) (w.e.f 11 August 2023 to 29 March 2024)
Mr. Lokesh Bhasin (Chief Financial officer) (w.e.£23 May 2023 to 11 August 2023) and (w.e.f 30 March 2024)
Ms. Rakhi Makhloga (Company Secretary w.e.f 23 January 2023)

Azine Healtheare Private Limited
Pharmatech Healthcare
Shubh Packaging

B. The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with rclated parties for the relevant year

Nature of transaction

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1 Revenue from operations (net of returns)

Azine Healtheare Private Limited
Pharmatech Healtheare
Nugenic Pharma Private Limited

2 Purchase of packing material
Shubh Packaging
Azing Healthcare Private Limited
Mugenic Pharma Private Limited

3 Purchase of store and spares
Nugenic Pharma Private Limited
Shubh Packaging

4 Packing charges
Shubh Packaging

5 Loans repaid during the year
Manoj Kumar Lohariwala
Vinay Kumar Lohariwala
Gian Parkash Aggarwal

6 Finance costs
Manoj Kumar Lohariwala
Vinay Kurmar Lohariwala
Gian Parkash Aggarwal

7 Loans given to employees
Mukesh Kumar
Rishi Gupta

§ Loans repaid by employees
Mukesh Kumar

9 Loan written off
Rishi Gupta

482 5.29
13.50 1425
2 0.05
105.20 112.22
0.64 0.34
593.33 562.08
384 6.23
0.10 0.13
; 013
84.00 41.07
102.50 99.71
63.40 100.00
1.47 8.02
111 5.65
1.79 797
1.20 a
: 5.00
055 0.14

5.00 -




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246M112005PLC150371)
Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(gt in T millions, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

C

Nature of transaction

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

10 Sitting fecs

Priyanka Dixit Sibal 0.81 043
Sudhir Kumar Bassi 1.37 0.84
Shirish G Belapure 1.10 047
Mahendar Korthiwada 1.17 0.28
11 Financial Cost
Manoj Kumar Lohariwala 4.09 0.60
Vinay Kumar Lohariwala 3.00 0.60
Gian Parkash Agearwal 477 0.30
12 Employee benefits cxpenses *

Vinay Kumar Lohariwala 6.2G 4.80
Manoj Kumar Lohariwala 6.20 4.80
Jayant Vasudeo Rao 1.61 1.47
Rishi Gupta 0.61 8.81
Meeharika Shukla 0.66 0.54
Priyanka Jangid 043 .16
Purushottam Sharma 0.47 045
Lakesh Bhasin 0.93 -
Mukesh Kumar 1.57 -
Ms. Rakhi Makhloga 0.74 -

= Break-up of compensation ol key managerial personnel of the Group For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Short-term employee benefits 19.41 2103
Post-employment benefits 0.31 2.09
Total compensation paid to key ma t per 1 19.72 23.12

The amount disclosed above in the table are the amounts recognized as expense during the reporting year related to key management personnel

# Refer nate 21 for details of personal guarantee provided by Vinay Kumar Lohariwala, Manoj Kumar Lobhariwala and Gian Parkash Aggzarwal for the

borrowing facilities availed by the Company.

Balances outstanding at year end

Mature of balanees

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 Mareh 2023

I Non- current horrowings
Gian Prakash Aggarwal
Manoj Kumar Lohariwala
Vinay Kumar Lohariwala

2 Trade payables
Mugenic Pharma Private Limited
Shubh Packaging
Azine Healthcare private Limited

3 Trade reeeivables
Pharmatech Healtheare
Azine Healthcare private Limited

4 Tnterest acerucd but not due on borrowings
Munoj Kumar Lohariwala
Vinay Kumar Lohariwala
Gian Parkash Aggarwal

152.11
13.19
0.15

12.17
3.03

102,50
84.00
63.40

85.04
273
0.09

10.50
431

1.48
0.79
177
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Nature of balances Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5 Loan outstanding to employees
Rishi Gupta - 5.00
Mukesh Kumar 1.10 -
6 Employee related payables
Manoj Kumar Lohariwala 042 0.30
Winay Kumar Lohariwala 042 030
Jayant Vasudeo Rao 0.12 011
Mukesh Kumar 0.05 -
Rishi Gupta - 0.56
Meeharika Shukla 0.03 0.05
Purushottam Sharma 0.04 0.04
Lokesh Bhasin 0.01 -
Priyanka Jangid 0.04 0.03

D. Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transaction with related parties are made on terns equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and within ordinary course of
business. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settiement occurs in cash.

Refer Note 17 and 18 for IPO expenses recoverable,

Note 40 - Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondences with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of amounts pavable to such enterprises as at the year end has been made in the Conselidated

Financial Information based on information available with the Group as under:

Particulars

Asat

31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of each accounting year;
- Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier
- Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier

(i1) the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appointed day during each
accounting vear,

(iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment
(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006);

(iv) The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year;
and

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section
23 of MSMED Act 2006.

” The total value of interest in absolute value was ¥ 350,00 but for reporting rounded upto ¥ 0.00 million .

13.62

0.12

0.11

Note 41 - Earnings per share For the year ended
31 March 2024

Praofit for basic/diluted earning per share of face value of ¥ 10 each

Profit for the year 943.45
Calewlation of Weighted average number of equity shares for (basic and dilured) 50,563,901
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value of T 10 each) 18.66

573
0.00"

0.04

For the year ended
31 March 2023

679.54

48,000,000
14.16
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Motes to the Consolidated Tinancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Mote 42 - Segment information

The Board of Directors monitors the operating results of this segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the Consohdated Financial Information. For
management purpose, the Group has identitied " Drugs and pharmaceutical products” as single operating segment.

a. Information about products and services

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from drugs and pharmaeeutical produets 10,769.59 9.253.08
Total 10,769.59 9,253.98

b, Information about geographical areas
The geographical information analyses the Group’s revenues by the Holding Company’s country of domicile (i.e. India) and other countries. In presenting the
geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the peographic location of customers. The following is the distribution of the Group's
consolidated revenues and receivables by geographical market, regardless of where the goods were produced:

For the year ended For the year ended

Revenue from customers * 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
India 832313 844735
Outside [ndia 2,446.46 806,63
10,769.59 9,253.98

As at As at

Trade reccivables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
India 231128 2,443.85
Outside India 573.60 208.33
2,584.88 2,652.18

* Revenue from customers has been presented based on the geographical location of customers.

Non-current assets
The Group has common non-current assets for business in domestic and overseas markets. Hence, separate figures for non-current assels/ additions to property,
plant and equipment have not been furnished.

e. Information about major customers (from cxternal customers)
For year ended 31 March 2024, one of the customer of the Group constituted more than 10% of the total revenue of Group amounting to 2 971.71 (31 March
2023, none of the customer of the Group constituted rmore than 10% of the total revenue of Group).

Note 43 - Employee benefits

a. Defined contribution plans
The Group makes contributions, delermined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, towards Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme
('ESI') which are collectively defined as defined contribution plans. The Group has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The
contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The amount recognized as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and
EST are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023

Provident fund 37.64 27.44
EST contribution 5.46 493
43.10 3237

b. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific

benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15
days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier,

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit
credit method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build
up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and
losses (net of tax) are recognized immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCT).

This is an unfunded benefit plan for qualifving employees. This scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.
The above defined benefit plan exposes the Group to following risks:

Imterest rate risk:

The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. [T bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.
Salary inflation risk:

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account of inflation, senionty, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement, The effect of these
decrements on the defined benefit abligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discunwl_(ﬂg and vesting criteria.
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The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit plan as required under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits:

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 Marech 2023

i. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
On account of business combination during the year
Interest cost
Current service cost
Past service cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain) loss recognized in other comprehensive income
- from changes in financial assumptions
- from changes in demographic assumptions
- from experience adjustments
Balance at the end of the year

27.12 20,09
£3.20 :
5.67 1.45
8.91 5.58
(6.20) (0.72)
(10.28) (2.73)
(11.86) 2.23
5.28 1.22
101.93 27.12

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

ii. Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss

Interest cost 567 1.45

Current service cost 891 5.58

14.58 7.03

iti. Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on defined benefit obligation (16.86) 0,72

(16.86) 0.72

iv. Actuarial assumptions
(i) Economic assumpiions

The principal assumptions are the discount rale and salary growth rate The discount rate is generally based upon the market yield available on the Government
bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities and the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors on long term basis,

For the year ended As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate (per annum) T.09% - 7.39% 7.30%
Future salary growth rate (per annum) 3.00% 3.00%
Expected average remaining working lives (years) 25.08-26.51 26.06-27.54
{ti) Demographic asswnplions

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Retirement age {years) 58-61 58
Mortality rate 100% (TALM) 100% (TALM)
(2012-14) (2012-14)

Altrition rate (per annum)

Upto 30 years 47.15%-55.23% 4.17%-50%
Trom 31 1o 44 years 20.22%-48.52% 20%-51%
Above 44 years 3.43%-46.67% 10.43%-44%
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tntcrense
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (2.00) (0.60)
Future salary growth rate (0.5% movement) 1.97 0,65
Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) 209 0.63
Future salary growth rate (0.5% movement) {1.90) (0.63)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practics, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit methad at the end of the reporting year) has been applied as
when calculating the defined benefit liability recognized in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis

did not change compared to the prior year.

v. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plan in future years

Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Within 1 year (next annual reporting year) 18.62 4.20
Betwesn | to 6 years 4728 13.18
Beyond 6 years 36.02 973
Total expected payments 101.92 27.11

vi. Weighted average duration and the expected employers contribution for next year of the defined benefit plan:
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

average duration of the defined benefit plan (in years)

1.39 - PTax 1.50-6,45
o ’éh. 873

employers contribution for next year
.. -
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=
% S
; —

\‘ b
\= \1‘



Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amownt in & millions, except for shoave data wless otherwise siated)

Nofe 44 - Financial instrument : fair value measurements
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments of the Group, other than those which are measured at FVTPL:

Note As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Carrying value Amortised Fair value Carrying Amortised Fair value
Cost  through OCI value Cost through OC1
Financial assets
Investments a 0.00 ¢.00 - o0 I -
Loans be 11.71 11,71 - 14.89 14,89 -
Trade receivables ¢ 2,854.88 2,884.88 - 2,652.18 2,652.18 -
Cash and cash equivalents & 117.28 11728 - 35.25 3525 -
Bank balances other than above ¢ 750,20 750,20 - 153.50 153.50 -
Other financial assets b 101.99 101.99 - 77.53 71.53 -
3,866.06 3,866,006 - 2,933.35 2,933.35 -
Financial linbilities
Borrowings be 2418.07 2,407.85 - 2,351.92 2,351.92 -
Lease liabilitics b 3297 3297 - 17.80 17.80 -
Trade payables e 1,796.55 1,796,355 - 1,584.83 1,584,83 -
Other financial liabilities ¢ 295,75 295.75 - 114.63 114.63 -
4,543.34 4,533.12 - 4,069,18 4,069.18

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments of the Group which are measured at FVTPL:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023

i R Carrying value FYTPL Carrying value FVTPL
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 3 d - - 78.94 78.94
- - 78.94 78.94

Notes:

4. The carrying value of investment in Shivalik Solid Waste Management Limited was 2 2,5000-. Fair value of this investment is not considered to be material.

b. The fair value of non-current assets and non-current liabilities { except lease liabilities) are valued based upon discounted cash flow valuation method. The valuation model
considers the present value of expected payments, discounted using risk adjusted discount rate. The own non-performance risk was assessed to be insignificant.

c.  Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities 15 considered as approximate to respeelive carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

d. The fair value of separable derivative component has been derived by using Black scholes model with terminal growth of 5% and weighied average cost of capilal at 13.7%.
{level-3). Refer below details for valuation technique and unobservable inputs for the assels or liabilities,

As at 31 March 2023

Valuation technique
Black scholes model

Significant unobservable input
Growth rate-3%

Sensitivities analysis

Derivative component of
cumulative com pulsorily
convertible preference share

Year on year growth rate -

Increase / (decrease) in growth rate by 1% would result in
increase/{decrease) in CCCPS liability by T 2246/ ( 15.84)
Cost of equity-13% Cost of equity -

increase/{decrease) in cost of equity by 1% would result in
(decrease)/ increase in CCCPS liability by T (26.14) / 39.66

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair values.
Particulars

Derivative component of cumulative
compulsorily convertible preference shares
Balance at 01 April 2022 -

Initial recognition on issuance of instrument 98.70
Gain included in Statement of Profit and Loss

— Met change in fair value (15.76)
Balanee at 31 Mareh 2023 78.94
Balance at 01 April 2023 78.94
Loss included in Statement of Profit and Loss

— Met change in fair value 19.36
Utilised at the time of conversion of CCCPS into equily shares (98.30)

Balance at 31 March 2024 -
There are no transfers between level |, level 2 and level 3 during the years presented.

Note 45 (a) - Finaneial risk management

Risk management framework

The Group is cxposed to market risk, eredit nsk and liquidity risk. The Holding Company’s Board of dircctor oversees the management of these risks. The Holding Company’s
board of director s responsible to ensure that Group®s financial risk activilies which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The board of directors reviews and ngrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarized below.
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(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becanse of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises interest
rate risk and currency risk financial instruments affeeted by market risk include trade receivables, trade payables and borrowings. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return
(a) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with foating interest rates. The
Group is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow
sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reporied to the management at
The exposure of the Group's borrowing to floating interest rate as reported at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fleating rate borrowings 2,413.94 1,522 .65
Fixed rate borrowings 748 832.04
Total borrowings (gross of transaction cost) 2,421.42 2,354.69

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible change of 0.50 % in interest rates at the reporting date would have alfected the profil or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or Loss Lquity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Wealkening

year ended 31 March 2024

Tnterest rate (0.5% movement) 1.03 (1.03) 0.77 (0.77)

year ended 31 March 2023

Interest rate (0 5% movement) 0.82 (0.82) 0.62 (0.62)

(b) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk 15 the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in forefgn exchange rates. The Group is exposed
1o the eftects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure arises primanly due to exchange rate
fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Group’s operating activities.

The Group does not enter into trade financial instruments including derivative financial instruments for hedging its foreign currency risk.

Exposure to currency risk :
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each reporting year are as

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amuount in Foreign Amount in Indian Amount in Foreign  Amount in Indian
Currency Currency Currency Currency
Trade Receivable  USD 4.40 365.46 2.83 23332
EUR 0.19 16.12 0.05 4,65
GBP 0.88 87.59 - I
Trade payables usb 1.05 86.22 0.77 64.50
EUR 0.17 15.37 0.00 0.40

Out of the above foreign currency exposures, none of the monetary assets and liabilities are hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise.

& F
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(ii)

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the ¥ against relevant foreign currencies 5% is the rate used in order to detenmine
the sensitivity analysis considering the past trends and expectations of the management for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis
includes the outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjust their transaction at the year end for 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below mdicates a increase in profit or equity where the ¥ strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the ¥ against the relevant
foreign currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity balance below would be negative. This analysis is performed on foreign currency
denominated monetary financial assels and financial labilities outstanding as at the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
As at 31 March 2024
USL 5% movement 22.58 (22.58) 22.33 (2233}
EURO 5% movemenl 1.57 (L57) 132 (1.32)
GBP 5% movement 4.38 (4.38) 4.13 (4.13)
As at 31 March 2023
USD 5% movement 12.88 (12.88) 9.64 (9.64)
EURD 5% movement 0.25 {0.25) 019 (D.19)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a finaneial loss, The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

() Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer
is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Cutstanding customer receivables
are regularly monitored.

Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/current facts available in relation to default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for
trade receivables is considered low. The Group estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. Individual receivables which are known
to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the canving amount of trade receivable and the amount of the loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
within other expenses.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows:

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within Tndia 2,311.28 2,443 85
Clutside India 573.60 208.33
Taotal 2,884.88 2,652.18

The carrying amount of the Group's most significant customer is 2 170.15 (31 March 2023; Nil)




Innova Captab Limited (CIN: U24246MH2005PLC150371)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ millions, except for share data wnless otherwise stated)

(iii)

(iv)

The following table provides information about the exposure to eredit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables

Gross earrying Loss Weighted average Whether
As at 31 March 2024 amount allowance loss rate credit-impaired
Nol due 1,939.28 3.62) 0.19% No
Less than 20 days 825.38 (2.15) -0.26% No
S0-180 days 23.17 (1.23) -5.32% No
More than 180 days 97.05 (34.24) -35.28% No
Total 2,884,588 (41.24)

Gross carrying TLoss Weighted average Whether
As at 31 March 2023 amount allowance loss rate credit-impaired
Not due 2,169.53 (0.74) -0.03% No
Less than 90 days 382.16 (0.60) -0.16% Mo
90-180 days 66.17 (0.70) -1.06% No
More than 180 days 4906 (12.70) -25.89% No
Total 2,666.92 (14.74)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are held with banks which have high credit rating The Group considers that its cash and cash 2quivalents have low credit risk
based on the external eredil ralings of the counterparties.

(e) Security deposils

The Group furnished security deposits as margin money deposits to bank. The Group considers that its deposits have low eredit risk or negligible risk of default as the
parties are well established entities and have strong capacity to meet the obligations. Also, where the Group expects that there is an uncertainty in the recovery of
deposit, it provides for suitable impairment on the same.

(d) Financial guarantee

The Group has assessed the credit risk associated with its financial guarantee contracts for allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) as at the year end. The Group
makes use of various reasonable supportive forward-looking parameters which are both qualitative as well as quantitative while determining the change in credit risk
and the probability of default. The Group's maximum exposure relating lo financial guarantees as on 31 March 2024 is ¥ 300.00 (31 March 2023: 2 1,000). Considering
the creditworthiness of entities within the group in respect of which financial guarantees have been given to banks, the management believes that the subsidiaries have
a low risk of default and do not have any amounts past due. Accordingly, no allowance for expected credit loss needs to be recognised as at year end.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral abligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
Group’s objective is to, at all times maintain eptimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash management system. [t maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimized cost,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at 31 March 2024 Carrying On demand Upto 1 Year 1-3 year More than Total
amount 3 years
Borrowings 2.418,07 23841 9821 552138 1,532.43 2,421.43
Other financial liabilities 29575 - 295.75' - - 295.75
Trade payables 1,796.55 - 1,796.55 - . 1,796.55
Lease liabilities 32.97 - 1111 2545 41.92 78.48
Total 4,543.34 23841 2,201.62 577.83 1,574.35 4,592.21
As at31 March 2023 Carrying On demand Upto 1 Year 1-3 year More than Total
amount 3 vears
Borrowings * 1,883.47 - 1,008.70 37724 49427 1,881.21
Other financial liabilities * 114.63 - 114.63 - - 114.63
Trade payables 1,584.83 - 1,584.83 - - 1,584 83
Lease liabilities 17.80 - 3.56 49.06 - 54.62
Total 3,600.73 - 2,714.72 426.30 494.27 3,635.29

* The carrying amount of borrowings and other financial liabilities include CCCPS amounting to ¥ 46845 and derivative component of CCCPS of T 7894
respectively. As the CCCPS holders of the Holding Company, in terms of the underlying agreement, had exit rights that include requiring the company te buy back
shares held by them upon occurrence of an event not under the control of the Holding Company, the disclosure of contractual undiscounted payments with respect to
the CCCPS has not been given,

Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual oblipations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions, Concentrations
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry, In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the
Group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly. P

A8y *

o
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Note 45 (b)- Capital risk management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issucd equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The
primary objective of the Group’s capital management 15 (o maximize the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, business strategies and future commiiments. Te maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharsholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Group monitors capital using
a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debl. The Group includes within net debt, trade payables and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents
and other bank balances.

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total Habilities 4,899.87 4,279.08
less: cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14) 117.28 3525
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Refer nole 15) 750,20 153.50
Adjusted net debt 4,032.39 4,090.33
Equity share capital (Refer note 19) 572.25 480.00
Other equity (Refer note 20) 7,736.69 2,285.06
Total capital 8,308.94 2,765.06
Total Capital and adjusted net debt 12,341.33 6,855.39
Gearing ratio 32.67% 59.67%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business.

Note 46(i) - Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (to the extent not provided for)

As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income tax matters*® z 0.60
- 0.60

*For assessment year 2017-2018, the Income tax Assessing Ofticer had raised the demand of ¥ 13.09 vide order dated 15 December 2019, On 19 July 2021, the Assistant
Commissioner of Income Tax reduced the demand to  0.60. The Company is of the view that the demand of 2 0.60 has been raised erroneously and accordingly, the
Company has filed an application for rectification with the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax to contest the demand. Subscquently the rectification order has been passed
on dated 09 May 2024 nullifying the demand.

Note 46 (ii) - Other Commitments

(a) Guarantee outstanding

Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Guarantee outstanding 300.00 1,000.00
300.00 1,000.00

The Holding Company has guaranteed an amount of  Nil (31 March 2023: 2 350.00) to HDEC Bank on behalf of its Subsidiary Company for availment of bank guarantee
for acquisition of Sharon Bio-Medicine Limited. The Holding Company has also guaranteed an amount of % 300.00 (31 March 2023: 300.00) to HDFC Bank on behall of ils
Subsidiary Company in relation to the short term borrewing [acilities availed by the Subsidiary Company.

(b) Capital commitment

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) not provided for 685.05 1,584.38

685.05 1,584.38
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Note 47 Business combination

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group acquired Sharon Bio Medicine Limited (“Sharon™), a public listed entity undergoing the corporate
insolveney resolution process ("CIRP") under the Tnsolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (“IBC™) before the Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench ("NCLT") since April 2017. Sharon is engaged in the business of manufacturing of intermediates and active pharmaceutical ingredients and
finished dosages. It also offers contract manufacturing services for formulations. It also performs pre-clinical and toxicology research services. The holding
submitted a resolution plan dated 22 August 2022 (as medified on 6 October 2022) (“Resolution Plan®) in relation to the CIRP involving Sharon. The
Resolution Plan was approved by the committee of ereditors on 16 November 2022 by a majority of 79.28% and subsequently an application for approval of
the Resolution Plan was filed by the resolution professional with the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT™} In line with the
resolution plan, it was decided that acquisition of Sharon would be done through Univentis Medicare Limited ("UML") as per board resolution passed by the
board of directors of TML an 20 March 2023. The resolution plan also required a performance guarantee to be furnished by holding company, which was
issued by UML on behalf of the holding company and was approved in extra ordinary general meeting of sharcholding of UML on 4 November 2022,

The Resolution Plan was approved by the NCLT pursuant to its order dated 17 May 2023 and implementation of the Resolution Plan commenced
subsequently. In accordance with the terms of the Resolution Plan appreved by the NCLT, Univentis Medicare limited ("UML") infused T 1,954.00 (%,
1,944.00 as loan and ¥ 10 as equity share capital) into Sharon on 26 June 2023 and closure of implementation pursuant to the Resolution Plan was achieved
on 30 June 2023, Following such infusion of funds by UML, Sharon became a wholly owned subsidiary of UML. UML availed a loan of | 450 from HDFC
bank for purpose of aforesaid infusion into Sharon. The Guarantee for this loan was given by the Holding company.

This being a business purchase has been accounted for in accordance with the Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations" and price allocation as at 30 June 2023
and certain information about fair valuation of acquired assets and liabilities is as follows:

Particulars Amount
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,414.95
Capital work-in-progress 1.04
Right-of-usc assets 280,70
Deterred tax assets (net) 248.39
Cther intangible assets 1.83
Inventories 305.15
Trade Receivables 290,65
Bank balances other than above 102,30
Cther financial assels 27.89
Other non current assets 7.31
Other current assets 227.67
Total Assets (A) 2,918.11
Liabilities
Lease liahilities 20
Provisions 96.54
Trade payable 177.08
Other financial liabilities 189.51
Cther current liabilities 92,88
Total Liabilities (B) 558.02
Net assets acquired (A-B) 230009
Capital reserve (711.95)
Total consideration (Net of Cash and cash and equivalents) 1,648.14

Revenue from operations and profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2024 includes Z Nil and T Nil respectively pertaining to acquisition of subsidiary
made during the year. 1f the acquisitions had happened at the beginning of the year, management estimates that the reported revenue from operations for the
year ended 31 March 2024 would have been higher by T 469,52 and profit before tax for the year higher by 3 450,75, In determining these amounts,
management has assumed that the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on
01 April 2023.

Following is the other information pertaining to acquisition to Sharon:

During the year ended 31 March 2024, The Subsidiary Company has acquired Sharon Bio Medicine Limited (“Sharon™), an entity undergoing the corporate
insolvency resolution process ("CIRP”) under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (“IBC”) before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench ("NCLT™) since April 2017, Sharon is engaged in the busi of facturing of intermediates and active pharmaceutical inpredients and
finished dosages. It also offers contract manufacturing services for formulations and performs pre-clinical and toxicology research services. The company
lhas submitted a resolution plan dated 22 August 2022 (as modified on 6 October 2023) (“Resolution Plan™) in relation to the CIRP involving Sharon. The
Resolution Plan was approved by the committee of creditors on 16 November 2023 by a majority of 79.28% and subsequently an application for approval of
the Resolution Plan was filed by the resolution professional with the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Beneh (“NCLT"). In line with the
resolution plan and as per board resolution passed by the board of directors of Univentis Medicare Limited (“UML") on 20 March 2023, it was decided that
acquisition of Sharon would be done through UML. The Resolution Plan was approved by the MCLT pursuant to its order dated May 17, 2023 and in
accordance witlh the terms of the Resolution Plan approved by the NCLT, UML infused ¥ 1,954.00 (T 1.944.00 as loan and T 10 as equity share capital)
into Sharen on June 26, 2023 and closure of implementation pursuant to the Resolution Plan was achieved on 30 June 2023, Following such infusion of
funds by UML, Sharon became a wholly owned subsidiary of UML. UML availed a loan of 1450 from HDFC bank for purpose of aferesaid infusion into
Sharon. The Guarantee for this loan was given by the Holding Company, Further, as per the affidavit filed by resolution professional on behalf of Company,
it was submitted before NCLT that following the acquisition of Sharon by UML, Sharon would merge into UML, Howsver, given that the resolution
application did not record the fact of such merger, the merger application was rejected by NCLT vide order dated 16 Qctober 2023,

The erstwhile Resolution Applicant Peter Back Und Peter Vermoegenssverwaltung ("PBP") in lieu of Performance bank Guarantee is forfeited by way of the
NCLT Order and accordingly sum of Rs. 10.06 Crores appearing as Share application money but pending for allotment, has been transferc
India by the Abhyudaya Bank.
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Also, during the year ending on 31 March 2023, following major events took place in Sharon:

a) A fire broke out at AP1 Unit at Plot No. 6, MIDC Arca, Taloja on February 26, 2023 around 8.50 AM in Production Line -1L Property, plant and
equipment having pross value ¥ 23.56 with its written down value T 9.68 and Stock (Finished Goods) worth % 1,10 were destrayed in the fire. The above
assets were insured for which company has filed a claim of 2 52.30 for property, plant and equipment and 2 110 for inventory, The reinstatement of
Production Line-1I has been completed and the company has started the production activities from March 22, 2024 The company 1s expecting the insurance
proceeds to be received by end of June 24.

b) On 9 March 2023, a search and [nvestigation was conducted by the Ceniral Bureau of Investigation ("CBIL") simultaneously at all busi locations of the
Company, including the Deliradun Plant, APL unit at Taloja, Toxicology unit at Taloja, Satra Plaza and Corporate Office at Vashi, and the same continued
overnight and was concluded on March 10, 2023, During the course of investigation, the CBI officials nade enquiries with the management of the company,
sought information from the key personnel and seized certain documents which are relevant for their investigation. 1t is pertinent to note that the CBL
officials have scized and taken complete control over the server and other related accounting and secretarial records from the premises of the Corporate
Office of the Company at Vashi and have carried the server with them for investigation purposes. They have also instructed the company personnel at
Toxicology unit to surrender the server at the carliest, which was handed over to CBI on 6 April 2023. As per the management's assessment this search and
seizure did not impact the ongoing operations of Sharon as the company had adequate data recovery measures in place. Further, the search and seizure,
pertained to erstwhile promoters of Sharon and bears no nepative/adverse impact on the Campany. The company had started operations in Toxicology in
March 2024,

c)Legal matter regarding the toxicology business- Sharon is vet to file an application for obtaining Geod laboratory practice standards (“GLP") certification
regarding loxicology business. As informed 10 us, Sharon has filed the application for re-inspection on 27 March 2024,

MNote 48: Disclosures pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Asat Agat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Investments:
(i) Investment in equity shares: Shivalik waste management system
Balance as af the year end ™ 000 0.00
Muoximan amount owistanding af any time dueing ihe year® 0,00 0.00
Guarantee
(i) Guarantee provided by subsidiary company en behalf of Holding company
- For acquisition of Sharon Bio Medicine Lumited (refer note 47 for details)
Halanee as at ife year end - 350,00
Merximum antonnt outstanding af any time duving the year 350,00 350,00
(ii) Guarantee provided by Holding Company on behalf of Subsidiary Company
- For acquisition of Sharon Bio Medicine Limited (refer note 47 for details)
Balance as at the year end - 350,00
Maximum amount oulstanding af any time duving the year 350.00 350,00
(iii) Guarantee provided by Holding Company on behalf of Subsidiary Company
- For availment of short tenn bormowing faeilities
Balance as at the year end 300,00 300.00
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 300,00 300.00
(iv) Guarantee provided by Company on behalf of Univentis Medicare Limited
- For availment of long term berrowing facilities for acquisition of Sharen Bio-Medicine Limited
Balemce as at the year end . _
Mecimmun amonnt owistanding af ainy time during the year 1,450.00 -

~ The total velite of shares in absolute value was € 2,500~ hut for reporting rounded upto  0.00 million
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Note 49 - Additional information pursuant to paragraph 2 of Division II of Schedule I to the Companies Act 2013 - ‘General instructions for the
preparation of Consolidated Financial Information’ of Division I of Schedule 111

Name of entity in the group Net Assets Share in profit after tax Share in other Share in total
(Total assets - Total liabilities) comprehensive income comprehensive income
As % of  Amount As %oof  Amount As % oof Amount As % of consolidated Amount
consolidated net consolidated profit consolidated other total comprehensive
assets comprehensive income
As at 31 March 2024
Parent
Innova Captab Limited 87.06%  7,233.84 71.90% 6578.28 14.70% 277 70.77% 681,05
Subsidiary
Univentis Medicare Limited 7.72% 641.29 12.44% 117.38 -1.13% (0.21) 12.18% 117.17
Univentis Foundation 0.01% 0.74 0.00% - (.00% - 0.00% -
Sharon Bio-Medicine limited 2.95% 24512 12.86% 121.29 86.43% 16.33 14.30%  137.61
Elimination 2.26% 187.95 2.81% 26.51 - 2 2.76% 26.51
Total 100.00%  8,308.94 100.00% 943.45 100.00% 18.89 100.00% _ 962.34
Name of entity in the group Net Asscts Share in profit after tax Share in other Share in total
(Total assets - Total liabilities) comprehensive income comprehensive income
As%of  Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of consolidated Amount
consolidated net consolidated profit consolidated other total comprehensive
asscts comprehensive income
income
As at 31 Muarch 2023
Parent
Innova Captab Limited 97.04% 2,683.18 84.69% 575.52 109.18% (0.59) 84.67% 57493
Subsidiary
Univentis Medicare Limited 18.96% 52412 15.25% 103.62 -9.18% 005 1527%  103.67
Univentis Foundation 0.00% 0.00 0.10% 0.68 - - 0.10% 0.68
Elimination -16.00% (442.24) -0.04% (0.28) - - -0.04% (0.28)
Total 100.00%  2,765.06 100.00% 679.54 100.00% (0.54) 100.00%  679.00

Note 50: Other Statutory Information

(1) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

(i1) The Group does not have any transactions/outstanding balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the
Companics Act, 1956,

(iii) The group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(i) None of the entities in the Group have been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any governiment authority except that
Sharon Bio-Medicine Limited has been declared as a wilful defaulter by the banks as it was under corporate insolvency resolution process since 11 April 2017, The
Holding Company is in the process of taking corrective steps as necessary.

(vii) The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(viii) The group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or pravious financial year.

(ix)The Group including the “Companies in the Group” (as per the provisions ol the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) do not have any
Core lnvestment Company (“CIC™),

(x) During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Holding Company has proyided a unsecured loan of ¥ 100,00 on 8 March 2023 1o the Univentis Medicare Limited for
acquisition of Sharon Bio-medicine Limited. Univentis Medicare Limited has invested T 100.00 for the said purpose in Sharon Bio-medicine Limited on 26 March
2023, subsequent to this Sharon Bio-Medicine Limited became wholly owned subsidiary on 30 June 2023, Apart from this, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the group to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Further, the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and Companies Act has
been complied with for such transactions and the transactions are noi violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Aet, 2002 (15 of 2003).

(xi) During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Univentis Medicare Limited has received an unsecured loan of T 100,00 on 08 June 2023 from the Holding
Company which has been invested by Univentis Medicare Limited in Sharon Bio-medicine Limited on 26 March 2023, subsequent to this Sharon Bio-Medicine
Limited became wholly owned subsidiary on 30 March 2023. Apart from this no funds have been received by the group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Further, the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and
Companies Act has been complied with for such transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003).

(xi1) The group has used borrowing for the purpose for which they have been obtained.
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Note 51: 'The Holding Company has completed its IPO of 12,723,214 equity shares of face value 10 each at an issue price of ¥ 448 per share (including a share
premium of T 438 per share) and as a result the equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE") and BSE Limited
{'BSE") on 29 December 2023. The issue comprised of a fresh issue of 7,142,857 equity shares aggregating to  3,200.00 million and offer for sale of 5,580,357
equity shares by sclling shareholders aggregating to 22,500.00 million. ’

The 1lolding Company has estimated T 478.39 as IPO related expenses and allocated such expenses between the Holding Company (2 272.29 of this amount, 2
263.17 has been adjusted to the security premium account) and selling sharehelders (3 205.60 ) in proportion to the equity shares allotted to the public as fresh issue
by the Holding Company and under offer for sale by selling sharcholder respectively, Out of the total IPO proceeds the fund available in monitoring agency account
15 T 54.93 for remitting funds for pending 1PO related expenses.
The Company has received an amount of 22,931 09 (net of TPO expenses of T268.91) from proceeds out of fresh issue of equity shares Out of these proceeds, T 3 88
1s payable to selling sharcholders on account of 1PO expenses incurred on behalf of the Compuny, The utilisation of the net IPO proceeds 1s summarised below

The Company has applied for change in CIN from unlisted to listed and the application vide SRN No AA6898984 dated 06 March2024 is pending with MCA.

Objectives as per Planned net proceeds as per|Actual net proceeds| Utilization upto 31 March Unautilized amount as on 31
Prospectus prospectus 2024 Mareh 2024
Repayment and / prepayment,
in part {?r m full, of certain 1.444.00 1.444.00 1.444.00 _
outstanding loans of]
Company
[nvestment in subsidiary for
repayment and /  or]
prepayment in part or full 236.00 236,00 236.00 -
outstanding loan availed by
the subsidiary
Funding Company working

: , 720.00 720.00 100.00 620,00
capital requirements*
General corporale purpose 531.09 531.00 531.09 "
Total Proeecds 2,931.09 2,931,09 2,311.09 620.00

*Tncludes  3.88 payable to selling shareholders on account of PO expenses incurred on behalf of the Company.
The Net IPO proceeds which were unutilized as at 31 March 2024, ¥ 620.00 millions is temporarily invested in fixed deposit.
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